
This PDF Package contains multiple files grouped 
together within a single PDF file.
Nuance PDF Converter Professional 7, and other recent PDF viewers, can 
be used to view and work with the files contained within this package.

Don’t have PDF Packaging 
capabilities today? 

Get PDF Converter  
Professional 7.

Click here to find  
out more >>

To get started, click any file in this PDF Package to view it.

 ·  PDF packages group multiple files and file types 
together for ease of distribution and sharing.

 ·  PDF packages organize related files for easier viewing 
and printing.

 ·  PDF packages maintain the original security settings for 
each document included in the package.

Note: In older PDF viewers/editors, the files are stored as attachments.

http://www.nuance.com/imaging/products/pdfconverter.asp
http://www.nuance.com/imaging/products/pdfconverter.asp

	Package.pdf




OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA


Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton,
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location
given below.


Meeting of the:
Date /Time:
Location:


Members:


CC:


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON
Tuesday, February 19, 2019 at 6:00 PM
Stoughton City Hall – Ed Overland Room (381 E. Main St)
Regina Hirsch, Denise Duranczyk, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Tim Swadley


Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,
Judi Krebs, Mary Demczak, Pat Groom, Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel,
Desi Weum, oregonobserver@wcinet.com, Council Members, Alexander Cramer


* Note-For security reasons, the front doors of the City Hall building (including the elevator
door) will be locked after 4:30 p.m. If you need to enter City Hall after that time, please use the
entrance on the east side of City Hall (the Planning Department door). If you are physically
challenged and are in need of the elevator or other assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to 4:30
p.m.


Item # CALL TO ORDER
1 Call to Order


2 Approval of Minutes from January 15, 2019


3 Communication
Director’s Report


Item # OLD BUSINESS
4 Review of Park Impact Fees (Discussion & Possible Action)


5 Prioritization of Future Park Land & Trails Future (Discussion & Possible
Action)


6 Rotary Park Improvements (Discussion & Possible Action)


Item # NEW BUSINESS
7 Bjoin Park Sport Court (Discussion & Possible Action)


8 Future Agenda Items


Item # ADJOURNMENT








PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES


January 16, 2018
6:00 PM
Stoughton City Hall, Ed Overland Room


Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Denise Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Tim Swadley and Parks &
Recreation Director Dan Glynn


Guests: Dennis Steinkraus, Jim Bricker, Emily Barr


1. Call to Order
Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Approval of Minutes from December 18, 2018
Motion to approve the minutes as presented by Duranczyk and seconded by Caravello.


Motion carried unanimously.


3. Communications


Directors Report-Duranczyk thanked Director Glynn for the report.


4. Kettle Park West Phase II Parkland (Discussion & Possible Action)


Jim Bricker and Dennis Steinkraus presented updated conceptual plan for Phase 2 KPW


Questions revolved around park dedication acreage calculation and future phases. Overall positive
reaction to the conceptual plan.


5. Mandt Park Master Plan RFP (Discussion & Possible Action)
Suggestions were made to correct spelling, changing completion date, integration with RDA project
and conceptual ideas.


6. Sediment Sampling RFP (Discussion & Possible Action)


Discussed scope of testing area and potential contaminants. Suggestions were made to correct
spelling, changing completion date.


7. Review of Park Impact Fees (Discussion & Possible Action)
Glynn shared studies with fee from other communities. Committee directed Glynn to bring Nordic
Ridge park plan cost to future meeting.


8. Prioritization of Future Park Land &Trails Future (Discussion & Possible Action)
Discussion about available land for potential new park areas or expansion.


Alderperson Hirsch will bring maps to next meeting.


9. Future Agenda Items
Rotary Park bathroom RFP updates, Park Impact Fees


Motion at 8:10 to adjourn by Duranczyk and seconded by Caravello.


Motion carried unanimously








Land Acquisition Priorities


Project: Expand Racetrack Park


Centralizing more athletic needs to Racetrack Park would allow the City to contract and/or run


concession operations where the profit could be put back into the park. Expansion of the park would


also allow the City to host local/community sports during the week and host large youth sporting events


during the weekend. The park has already hosted a youth state softball tournament which has resulted


in an approximate economic impact of $250,000 in 2018.


Centralizing athletic fields to a sports park would also provide the flexibility to have more passive space


in neighborhood parks which is more desirable for home owners.


The park expansion would also accommodate a route connection for the trail from the Stone Crest


neighborhood to the east side of the city.


CORP Alignment


Goal 1.2.2: Establish and maintain high quality parks and recreational services.


Objectives:


C. Pursue the development of revenue generating recreational facilities and activities, which can aid in


the development of new facilities and/or the maintenance of existing facilities.


Goal 1.2.4: Promote bicycle and pedestrian facilities through Stoughton and the surrounding area.


Objectives:


A. Improve local route connectivity throughout the area to parks, conservancies, schools, local


businesses, and regional trails.


Goal 1.2.8: Stress the benefits of larger neighborhood and community parks that provide a wide range


of facilities over small playground and tot-lot facilities


Objectives:


C. Communicate the importance of dynamic, multi-purpose parks and recreational facilities as a


component of Stoughton’s regional draw and economic development potential.







Land Acquisition Priorities


Project: Acquire Riverfront Parkland


Additional park land along the riverfront provides opportunities to provide more water based recreation


for residents. It’s also a unique feature to Stoughton and sets it apart from other Dane County


communities. The selected properties below have been identified as locations for easements or


acquisition.


Many of these properties are necessary for trail connectivity.


CORP Alignment


Goal 1.2.4: Promote bicycle and pedestrian facilities throughout Stoughton and the surrounding area.


Objectives:


a. Improve local route connectivity throughout the area to parks, conservancies, schools, local


businesses, and regional trails.


Goal 1.2.7: Promote water recreation throughout the community.


Objectives:


a. Utilize riverfront parks for potential water based recreational improvements.


c. Promote and maintain canoe/kayak launches and fishing areas.







Land Acquisition Priorities











January 14, 2019


ParkServe® 
The Trust for Public Land


P r o j e c t  A r e a s


L e g e n d


Report Area
Parks


Park Need (Places)
Very High
High
Moderate


This report was created on January 14, 2019 using the ParkServe®  interactive mapping site. 
It is for informational purposes only. The providers of this report disclaim any and all warranties, express or implied, including fitnessfor a particular purpose or merchantability, and make no representation that the report is complete, accurate, or error free.


Use and reliance on this report is at the sole risk of the party using same.
©  20 1 8  T h e  Tr u s t  f o r  Pu b l i c  L an d .


P a g e  1  o f  2


   


S t o u g h t o n ,  W I  -  C i t y  L e v e l  R e p o r t


A l l  s t a t i s t i c a l  r e s u l t s  a r e  a g g r e g a t e d  f o r  t h e  l i s t e d  p r o j e c t  a r e a s  a n d  t h e i r  s e r v i c e  a r e a s .  S e r v i c e
a r e a s  a r e  b a s e d  o n  1 0 - m i n u t e  ( 1 / 2  m i l e )  w a l k  t i m e s  f r o m  p r o j e c t  a c c e s s  p o i n t s  d e f i n e d  f o r  e a c h


p r o j e c t  a r e a  a n d  b a s e d  u p o n  t h e  w a l k a b l e  n e t w o r k .







January 14, 2019


ParkServe® 
The Trust for Public Land


P o p u l a t i o n  w i t h i n  a  1 0 - m i n u t e  w a l k
To t a l  P o p u l a t i o n


This report was created on January 14, 2019 using the ParkServe®  interactive mapping site. It is for
informational purposes only. The providers of this report disclaim any and all warranties, express or implied, including fitnessfor a particular purpose or merchantability, and make no representation that the report is complete, accurate, or error free.


Use and reliance on this report is at the sole risk of the party using same.
©  20 1 8  T h e  Tr u s t  f o r  Pu b l i c  L an d .


1 0 , 8 8 9


P a g e  2  o f  2


R a c e / E t h n i c i t y
W h i t e
B l a c k
A s i a n
N a t i v e  A m e r i c a n


S e r v e d
1 0 , 2 5 4


1 3 4
2 0 2


2 6
P a c i f i c  /  H a w a i i a n 6
O t h e r  R a c e 5 0
Mi x e d  R a c e 2 1 9


A g e
C h i l d r e n  ( l e s s  t h a n  a g e  2 0 )
A d u l t s  ( a g e  2 0  t o  a g e  6 4 )


S e r v e d
2 , 7 0 7
6 , 3 8 6


S e n i o r s  ( a g e  6 5  a n d  u p ) 1 , 7 9 6


H o u s e h o l d  I n c o m e
L o w  i n c o m e
Mi d d l e  i n c o m e


S e r v e d
1 , 9 2 1


7 6 8
H i g h  i n c o m e 1 , 8 2 6


D e m o g r a p h i c  i n f o r m a t i o n  i s  d e r i v e d  f r o m  E S R I  2 0 1 7  D e m o g r a p h i c  F o r e c a s t  B l o c k  G r o u p s  d a t a .


H i s p a n i c * 2 3 4
*  U .S .  C e ns u s  c a p t u r e s  H i s p a n i c  O r i g i n  s e p a r a te  f r o m  r ac e


( G e n e r a t e d  F r o m R e g i o n a l  M e d i a n  I n c o m e s )





		Land Acquisition Priorities.pdf

		Future Parks Map.pdf

		ParkServe_2019-01-14_133825.pdf






Nordic Ridge Park Budget


Shelter


Construct $210,857.00


Steel Roof $12,526.00


Solar Energy System $10,995.00


Brick Façade $1,974.00


Steel Doors $5,301.00


Electric Locks $3,368.00


Trash & Recycling Recepticles (2 sets) $2,000.00 Still need to be purchased


Picnic Tables (14 tables, 8' long) $9,954.00


Total $256,975.00


Splash Pad


Construct $91,394.00


Equipment $90,459.00


Benches (4 benches, no concrete pad needed) $3,000.00


Trash & Recycling Recepticles $1,000.00 Still need to be purchashed


Total $185,853.00


Playground


Equipment & Surfacing $123,527.00


Excavation $6,120.00


Concrete Pathway & Curb for Playground $4,164.00


Bike Rack (parking for 4 bikes, 10x10' concrecte pad) $1,150.00


Benches (2 benches, concrete pad) $1,700.00


Restoration $2,000.00


Trash & Recycling Recepticles (4x6 concrete pad) $1,200.00


Total $139,861.00


Sport Court


Construct $70,000.00 Estimate based on Bjoin Park bid results


Equipment $5,000.00


Bench (10x4' concrete pad) $850.00


Trash & Recycling Recepticles (4x6' concrete pad) $1,200.00


ADA Pathway $3,000.00


Total $80,050.00


Soccer Field


Culvert for Accessible Pathway to Soccer Field $1,500.00


Paved Asphalt Pathway to Soccer Field (~ 175 LF) $11,711.00 estimate based on 2018 River Trail bid results


Trash & Recycling Recepticles (4X6 concrete pad) $1,200.00


Turf Grow-In Program $3,000.00


Total $17,411.00


Patio & Shade Area







Shade Structures (20X20 Offeste Single Post Pyramid, 10' High) $9,655.00


Concrete Pad & Restoration $9,900.00


Trash & Recycling Recepticles (one set) $1,000.00


Picnic Tables (four tables) $3,200.00


Total $23,755.00


Total Development Cost $703,905.00


Impact Fees


Developer's Agreement $218,550.17 Collected


Additional Lot 134 $28,402.00 Still needs to be collected. Based on 21 2 BR and 16 1 BR


Total Impact Fees for Nordic Ridge $246,952.17


Cost to the City (Development Cost - Impact Fees) $456,952.83


*Does not include cost to develop mini park


*Highlighted items have not been purchased







Still need to be purchased


Still need to be purchashed


Estimate based on Bjoin Park bid results


estimate based on 2018 River Trail bid results







Still needs to be collected. Based on 21 2 BR and 16 1 BR







City Single Family Multi Family Sr. Housing Exceptions?


Cottage Grove $505.00 per unit $505.00 per unit
Fees collected in 2 parts - 1/2 at time of plat, 1/2 at building


permit. Exceptions for Sr. Housing have been made on a case
by case basis.


DeForest $1,739 per residential unit $1,308 per residential unit Senior housing is exempt from Park Improvement Fees


Fitchburg $650 per dwelling unit
$325 for two family, $155 for multi-family (per dwelling


unit)
No adjustment for Sr. Housing


Madison - 2017 $1,263.51 per unit
$857.86 per unit, $1,665.01 Large Mulit Family (4+


bdrms)
$669.99 - age restricted by deed.


Madison - 2018 $1,368.00 per unit
$928.80 per unit, $1,802.70 Large Mulit Family (4+


bdrms)
$725.40 - age restricted by deed.


McFarland $731.47 per unit $443.93 per unit
No adjustment for Sr. Housing in the past - but may be


negotiable now as a part of developer's agreement


Middleton $1,218.00 per unit $731.00 per unit
No adjustment for independent living - no fee for nursing home or


assisted living.


Monona $1,137.00 per unit $1,137.00 per unit No adjustment for Sr. Housing


Stoughton $1,125.10 per unit
$843.81 for two bedrooms or more, $562.54 for one bedroom


or less
No adjustment for Sr. Housing


Sun Prairie
$1,700.00 per unit (significant increase proposed


for 2018)
$1,700.00 per unit reduced fee of $660 applies to assisted living


Verona $300 per bedroom $300 per bedroom
Sr. housing units received reduced fees in the past - but this is


no longer available.


Waunakee - Current $1,813.19 per unit $1,234.58 per unit No exception available


Waunakee - 2018
Proposed $2,351.48 per unit $1,599.01 per unit $783.82 for facilities that meet the "group quarters" definition'


AVERAGE 2017 FEE $1080.21 per unit * All rates are 2017 unless otherwise noted


Park Impact / Improvement Fees - 2017







MONIES IN LIEU OF


DEDICATION FOR PARK


ACQUISITION COSTS PER SEC.


66-1101 (2)


PARK IMPACT FEES PER SEC.


67-5 b (1)


PARK IMPACT FEES PER SEC.


67-5 b (2)


PARK IMPACT FEES PER SEC.


67-5 b (3)


PER SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL UNIT: $3,678.27


PER TWO OR MORE BEDROOM APT. UNIT: $2,759.02


PER STUDIO OR ONE BEDROOM APT. UNIT: $1,838.47


FOR SINGLE FAMILY AND TWO FAMILY


RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT:


$1,195.92 PER UNIT FOR PARK


FACILITIES


$3,678.27 PER UNIT FOR


PARKLAND


TOTAL OF $4,874.19 PER UNIT


($9,748.38 FOR TWO-FAMILY)


FOR MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL UNITS OF


TWO BEDROOMS OR MORE:


$896.92 PER UNIT FOR PARK


FACILITIES


$2,759.02 PER UNIT FOR


PARKLAND


TOTAL OF $3,655.94 PER UNIT


FOR MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL UNITS OF


ONE BEDROOM OR LESS:


$597.95 PER UNIT FOR PARK


FACILITIES


$1,838.47 PER UNIT FOR


PARKLAND


TOTAL OF $2,436.42 PER UNIT


2019 PARK IMPACT FEES


(2018 CONSTRUCTION COST INDEX INCREASE = 2.9%)


MONIES IN LIEU OF PARKLAND DEDICATION ARE ALSO SHOWN BELOW AND ARE NOT TO BE DUPLICATED FOR PARK ACQUISITION.







 
 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Technical Proposal for 


 


Park Impact Fee and Land 


Dedication Policy, and Public Facility 


Needs Assessment – RFP # 8425-0-


2015-MS 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin 
 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


Park Impact Fee and Land Dedication Policy 


and Public Facility Needs Assessment 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin 
 


 


 


 
The Lakota Group 


 
 


June 2016 


 


Draft



pamrs

Typewritten Text







Table of Contents 


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................ 1 
Background ...................................................................................................................................... 1 
Summary of Recommendations .................................................................................................... 2 
Summary of Results ........................................................................................................................ 3 


LEGAL FRAMEWORK ................................................................................................................... 5 
Wisconsin Statutes ........................................................................................................................... 5 
Impact Fee Principles ..................................................................................................................... 6 


EVALUATION ................................................................................................................................... 8 
Current System................................................................................................................................. 8 
Service Areas/Benefit Districts ................................................................................................... 10 
Land Use Categories ..................................................................................................................... 15 


NEEDS ASSESSMENT STUDY .................................................................................................. 18 
Service Units ................................................................................................................................... 18 
Land Dedication Requirements ................................................................................................... 22 
Fees-in-lieu of Dedication ............................................................................................................ 24 
Development Fees......................................................................................................................... 26 
Effect on Affordable Housing .................................................................................................... 29 


APPENDIX A:  EXISTING PARK INVENTORY .................................................................. 30 
 


List of Tables 


Table 1.  Current Park Impact Fees .................................................................................................. 2 
Table 2.  Comparison of 2002 to Updated Dedication Requirements ......................................... 3 
Table 3.  Comparison of Current to Updated Park Fees ............................................................... 4 
Table 4.  Park Fee Revenues by Benefit District, 2010-2014 ...................................................... 12 
Table 5.  Existing Active Park Acres ............................................................................................... 12 
Table 6.  Park Benefit Districts, Selected Cities ............................................................................ 13 
Table 7.  Census Housing Categories .............................................................................................. 16 
Table 8.  Persons per Unit by Housing Type ................................................................................. 18 
Table 9.  Persons per Multi-Family Unit by Presence of Elderly................................................ 19 
Table 10.  Persons per Unit for Large Multi-Family Units .......................................................... 19 
Table 11.  Persons per Lodging Unit .............................................................................................. 19 
Table 12.  Recommended Persons per Unit by Housing Type ................................................... 20 
Table 13.  Dwelling Units by Housing Type, 2010 ....................................................................... 20 
Table 14.  Estimated Park Service Units, 2015 .............................................................................. 21 
Table 15.  Existing Park Level of Service ....................................................................................... 22 
Table 16.  Adopted Park Level of Service ...................................................................................... 23 
Table 17.  Updated Park Land Dedication Requirements ........................................................... 23 
Table 18.  Land Costs per Square Foot by Area ........................................................................... 24 
Table 19.  Updated Fees-in-lieu of Dedication .............................................................................. 25 
Table 20.  Existing Park Improvement Costs ................................................................................ 26 
Table 21.  Park Development Cost per Service Unit .................................................................... 27 
Table 22.  Outstanding Park Debt ................................................................................................... 27 
Table 23.  Park Debt Credit per Service Unit ................................................................................ 27 
Table 24.  Park Grant Credit per Service Unit............................................................................... 28 
Table 25.  Park Development Net Cost per Service Unit ............................................................ 28 
Table 26.  Updated Park Development Fees ................................................................................. 29 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory ..................................................................................... 30 
 


 


Duncan Associates, 17409 Rush Pea Circle, Austin, TX  78738, 512-479-0089; clancy@duncanassociates.com  







 
 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 1 June 28, 2016 


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


 
The purpose of this project is to prepare an evaluation of the City’s park impact fee/land dedication 
system, and to prepare a public facility needs assessment study.  This document provides both. 
 
The policy evaluation includes a review of the City’s existing impact fees and land dedication 
requirements, park impact fee policies used by other municipalities, the assessment of multiple 
bedroom and accessory dwelling units, and park development impact fee benefit districts.  The needs 
assessment calculates current proportionate fair-share dedication requirements and fees by housing 
type to address new residential development’s impact on the need for park land dedication and park 
development.  
 
 


Background 


 
Madison is the capital of the State of Wisconsin and the second largest city in the state.  The layout of 
the incorporated area and locations of existing parks are illustrated in Figure 1. 
 


Figure 1.  Madison City Limits and Park Locations, 2012 


 
Source:  City of Madison, 2012-2017 Park and Open Space Plan, 2012.  







Executive Summary 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 2 June 28, 2016 


 
The City of Madison’s park impact fees/land dedication system is based on a needs assessment study, 
and consists of development requirements for park land dedication or payment of fees-in-lieu at time 
of subdivision, and park development impact fees paid at time of building permit issuance.  The City’s 
park impact fees and land dedication requirements have been in place since 1992.  Current 
requirements are based on a needs assessment study prepared by City staff in 2002.  The fees are 
adjusted annually for inflation.1  Current development fees and maximum fees-in-lieu are summarized 
in Table 1. 
 


Table 1.  Current Park Impact Fees 


Single-  Age-Rest./


Family/ Multi- Lodging  


Duplex  Family House*  


Square Feet of Park Land per Unit 1,100 700 350


x Maximum Cost per Sq. Foot $2.83 $2.83 $2.83


Maximum Fee-in-Lieu per Unit $3,111 $1,980 $990


Park Development Fee per Unit $1,081 $695 $348


Total Park Fee per Unit $4,192 $2,675 $1,338  
* age-restricted multi-family per unit, and lodging/rooming house per bedroom 


Source:  City of Madison, February 22, 2016. 


 
 


Summary of Recommendations 


 
Benefit Districts.  Provide additional flexibility in the expenditure of park development impact fees.  
The current 11 benefit districts are much smaller than necessary, and make it difficult to accumulate 
enough revenue is some districts to fund meaningful improvements.  The City could consolidate 
existing districts, create a smaller number of new districts, or allow fees collected in one district to be 
spent on an improvement in an adjacent district.  City staff proposes to divide the city into four benefit 
districts, with 20% of revenue going into a fifth, city-wide benefit district. 
 
Fees-in-Lieu.  The current fees-in-lieu of dedication are based on the value of the property to be 
subdivided, up to a maximum amount per square foot of land.  While the maximum value is based on 
raw suburban land values, there are often cases where developers present appraisals showing that the 
value of the land they are subdividing is lower than the maximum value, thus qualifying for a reduced 
fee-in-lieu.  This process has been problematic in the past and leads to delays in resolution of the fee-
in-lieu rate to be assessed.  It is recommended that the ordinance be changed to base the fees-in-lieu 
on the city-wide average cost of land acquisition, without reference to the value of the development 
applicant’s land. 
 
Annual Inflation Adjustments.  The park development fees are adjusted annually based on the 
Engineering News-Record Construction Cost Index.  The fees-in-lieu are increased by 5% annually to 
account for inflation.  This update recommends basing the adjustment for fees-in-lieu on the city-wide 
annual average change in land values on the City’s certified tax roll. 
 
Age-Restricted/Lodging Units.  This update recommends basing the park land dedication 
requirements and park development fees for age-restricted multi-family units and lodging houses 


                                                 
1  Fees-in-lieu are adjusted by 5% annually, and development fees by the annual change in the Engineering News-Record 
Construction Cost Index. 







Executive Summary 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 3 June 28, 2016 


(dormitories, fraternities, etc.) on data, rather than assuming one-half of the multi-family rate.  
Available data indicate that the requirements and fees should be about 78% of the multi-family rate 
for age-restricted units and about 56% for a lodging unit (or bedroom). 
 
Large Multi-Family Units.  A recent development in Madison is the construction of new multi-family 
units with four or more bedrooms, which are being used primarily to provide student housing.  
Available data indicate that these types of units tend to have almost twice as many residents as an 
average multi-family unit, and this study calculates potential requirements for such units based on that 
data. 
 


Summary of Results 


 


Dedication Requirements 


 
The City’s current parkland dedication requirements based on the 2002 study are compared to the 
updated requirements in Table 2.  The updated level of service (ratio of park land to population) is 
about 5% higher than the one used in the 2002 study.  The 2002 study retained the previous dedication 
requirements per unit, which essentially meant that single-family residents were charged for a level of 
service (423 sq. ft. per person) that was about 15% higher than what multi-family residents were 
charged for (368 sq. ft. per person).  This update uses the same level of service standard for all housing 
types.  This results in the updated square feet per person increasing more for multi-family (20%) than 
for single-family (4%).   
 


Table 2.  Comparison of 2002 to Updated Dedication Requirements 


Percent


Housing Type Unit 2002 Updated Change


Park Land Level of Service (Acres per 1,000 Pop.) 9.61 10.13 5%


Park Land Level of Service (Sq. Feet per Person) 419 441 5%


Square Feet per Person


Single-Family Detached/Duplex Dwelling 423 441 4%


Multi-Family Dwelling 368 441 20%


Multi-Family, 4 or More Bedrooms Dwelling 368 441 20%


Multi-Family, Age Restricted Dwelling 368 441 20%


Lodging House Bedroom 368 441 20%


Persons per Unit


Single-Family Detached/Duplex Dwelling 2.60 2.45 -6%


Multi-Family Dwelling 1.90 1.67 -12%


Multi-Family, 4 or More Bedrooms Dwelling 1.90 3.23 70%


Multi-Family, Age Restricted Dwelling 0.95 1.30 37%


Lodging House Bedroom 0.95 0.93 -2%


Square Feet per Unit


Single-Family Detached/Duplex Dwelling 1,100 1,081 -2%


Multi-Family Dwelling 700 734 5%


Multi-Family, 4 or More Bedrooms Dwelling 700 1,424 103%


Multi-Family, Age Restricted Dwelling 350 573 64%


Lodging House Bedroom 350 410 17%  
Source:  2002 data from City of Madison Parks Division, Needs Assessment for Park Dedication and 


Development Impact Fees, August 6, 2002; updated data from Table 17. 


 







Executive Summary 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 4 June 28, 2016 


 
The other major change was updating the persons per unit.  The average number of persons per unit 
by housing type has been updated from the 2002 study based on current data.  The updated person 
per unit are lower than they were in 2002 for the three major categories (single-family, multi-family 
and lodging), but are higher for a new category of multi-family units with four or more bedrooms 
(mainly student housing), and for age-restricted multi-family units. 
 
The net result is that the updated dedication requirements (sq. ft. per unit) are similar to current 
requirements for single-family and multi-family units.  The updated dedication requirements are 
somewhat higher for lodging houses, and substantially higher for student-oriented and age-restricted 
multi-family units. 
 


Fees-in-Lieu and Development Fees 


 
The updated park fees-in-lieu of dedication and park development fees are compared with current 
fees in Table 3.  The figures shown for current fees-in-lieu are actually maximum fees-in-lieu (fees may 
be lower based on the value of the subject property), while the updated fee-in-lieu would be charged 
in all cases, regardless of the development’s property value.   
 
There are three major factors responsible for the increases in the fees-in-lieu.  The first is the increase 
in the dedication requirements, which reflect the updated level of service and the application of the 
level of service equally to all housing types, as described above.  The second is the 15% increase in 
average land costs over the current maximum value.  The third is the change in persons per unit by 
housing type (particularly for large and age-restricted multi-family units). 
 
The change in development fees reflects the updated level of service (replacement cost of existing 
improvements per person), as well as the change in persons per unit by housing type.  The biggest 
increases in percentage terms are for large multi-family units and age-restricted multi-family units.  The 
updated fees for these two categories are based on current available data, rather than being assessed 
at half the multi-family rate. 
 
The total park fee, including both fee-in-lieu of dedication and park development fee, is 20% higher 
than the current fee for single-family, and higher by larger percentages for other housing types. 
 


Table 3.  Comparison of Current to Updated Park Fees 


Housing Type Current Updated Change Current Updated Change Current Updated Change


Single-Family Det./Duplex $3,111 $3,502 13% | $1,081 $1,520 41% | $4,192 $5,022 20%


Multi-Family $1,980 $2,378 20% | $695 $1,032 48% | $2,675 $3,410 27%


Multi-Family, 4+ Bedrooms $1,980 $4,614 133% | $695 $2,003 188% | $2,675 $6,617 147%


Multi-Family, Age Restricted $990 $1,857 88% | $348 $806 132% | $1,338 $2,663 99%


Lodging House (per bedroom) $990 $1,328 34% | $348 $577 66% | $1,338 $1,905 42%


Total Park FeesFees-in-Lieu Development Fees


 
Source:  Fees-in-lieu from Table 19; development fees from Table 26. 


 







 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 5 June 28, 2016 


LEGAL FRAMEWORK 


 
Impact fees are a way for local governments to require new developments to pay a proportionate share 
of the infrastructure costs they impose on the community.  In contrast to traditional “negotiated” 
developer exactions, impact fees are charges that are assessed on new development using a standard 
formula based on objective characteristics, such as the number and type of dwelling units constructed.  
The fees are one-time, up-front charges, with the payment usually made at the time of building permit 
issuance.  Essentially, impact fees require that each new development project pay its pro-rata share of 
the cost of new capital facilities required to serve that development. 
 
Because impact fees were pioneered before the existence of specific state enabling legislation, they 
were originally based on local government’s broad “police power” to regulate land development in 
order to protect the health, safety and welfare of the community.  The courts have developed 
guidelines for constitutionally-valid impact fees, based on “rational nexus” standards.  These standards 
essentially require that the fees must be proportional to the need for additional infrastructure created 
by the new development, and must be spent in such a way as to provide that same type of 
infrastructure to benefit new development. 
 
 


Wisconsin Statutes 


 
Impact fees in Wisconsin are governed by the State’s impact fee statute (Section 66.0617), which was 
adopted in 1993.  Act 477, which became effective in 2006, modified the list of eligible park facilities.  
Previously, the statute had authorized impact fees for “parks, playgrounds and other recreational 
facilities;” now, it authorizes fees for “parks, playgrounds and land for athletic fields.”  It does not 
appear that this change had a substantive effect on the authority to assess fees for park land, but it 
may exclude the use of fees for some recreational facilities located outside of parks.   
 
The standards governing municipal impact fees embodied in the statute include provisions relating to 
rational relationship, proportionate share, service areas, level of service, existing deficiencies, 
developer and revenue credits, and refunds.  According to State law, an impact fee: 
 
■ must bear a “rational relationship” to need; 
■ “may not exceed the proportionate share” of costs attributable to growth; 
■ must be based on a “needs assessment;” 
■ must identify service areas and service standards; 
■ must provide a list of needed improvements and “reasonable estimates” of costs; 
■ may include land, legal, engineering, design and construction costs; 
■ may not include legal/engineering/design costs in excess of 10% of capital costs, unless the 


city can demonstrate those costs exceed 10%; 
■ must identify and exclude the cost of any existing deficiencies; 
■ must be reduced to compensate for other fees or costs, including land dedication or fees in-


lieu of dedication; 
■ must reduce fees to account for Federal/State funding;  
■ may assess differential fees by zone based on justified differences in needs or costs;  
■ may provide exemptions or reductions for “low-cost housing;”  
  







Legal Framework 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 6 June 28, 2016 


 
■ is payable in full on issuance of a building permit;  
■ must be placed in a separate interest-bearing account;  
■ must be used within a “reasonable period of time” or refunded to the current property owner; 
■ must provide an appeals procedure for administrative decisions; and 
■ must estimate the cumulative effect of all impact fees on the availability of affordable housing. 
 
The final requirement is unique to Wisconsin’s statute.  The effect of impact fees on housing costs, 
much less on housing affordability, is a complex issue.  For example, some of the cost to the developer 
may be absorbed by land owners, who may have to lower the price of their land to attract a buyer.  
There is a dense literature on the subject of who (landowner, developer, builder or buyer) ultimately 
bears the cost of impact fees, with no uniformly applicable conclusions other than it depends on many 
locally-variable factors.  Consequently, it is not really feasible to develop a precise estimate of the effect 
of Madison’s fees on affordable housing.  The generalized type of discussion provided in recent City 
needs assessments is the most reasonable approach to take with respect to this requirement.   
 
 


Impact Fee Principles 


 
One of the most fundamental principles of impact fees, rooted in both case law and norms of equity, 
is that impact fees should not charge new development for a higher level of service than is provided 
to existing development.  While impact fees can be based on a higher level of service than the one 
existing at the time of the adoption of the fees, two things are required if this is done.  First, another 
source of funding other than impact fees must be identified and committed to fund the capacity 
deficiency created by the higher level of service.  Second, sound impact fee practice also requires that 
the impact fees should be reduced to ensure that new development does not pay twice for the same 
level of service, once through impact fees and again through general taxes that are used to remedy the 
capacity deficiency for existing development, by providing a credit for the portion of the cost of 
deficiencies that will be paid by new development.  In order to avoid these complications, the best 
practice is to base the impact fees on the actual existing level of service, rather than on a higher desired 
level of service.   
 
A corollary principle is that new development should not have to pay more than its proportionate 
share when multiple sources of payment are considered.  As noted above, if impact fees are based on 
a higher-than-existing level of service, the fees should be reduced by a credit that accounts for the 
contribution of new development toward remedying the existing deficiencies.  This study is based on 
a levels of service for park land and park development that equal to or lower than the existing levels 
of service.  Consequently, no deficiency credits are warranted. 
 
A similar situation arises when the existing level of service has not been fully paid for.  Outstanding 
debt on existing facilities that are counted in the existing level of service will be retired, in part, by 
revenues generated from new development.  Given that new development will pay impact fees to 
provide the existing level of service for itself, the fact that new development may also be paying for 
the facilities that provide that level of service for existing development could amount to paying for 
more than its proportionate share.  Consequently, impact fees should be reduced to account for future 
payments that will retire outstanding debt on existing facilities.  This study provides a credit for 
outstanding park debt 
. 







Legal Framework 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 7 June 28, 2016 


 
Credit should also be provided for outstanding grants for capacity improvements that can reasonably 
be anticipated in the future.  The Wisconsin statute specifically requires that impact fees shall “be 
reduced to compensate for moneys received from the federal or state government specifically to 
provide or pay for the public facilities for which the impact fees are imposed.”  This study provides 
credits for anticipated grant funding. 
 
Finally, credit needs to be provided for other types of developer contributions toward the same 
improvements for which the impact fees are being charged.  The State enabling act states that impact 
fees shall “be reduced to compensate for other capital costs imposed by the municipality with respect 
to land development to provide or pay for public facilities, including special assessments, special 
charges, land dedications or fees-in-lieu of land dedications…or any other items of value.”  Unlike 
revenue credits for outstanding debt and grants discussed above, which are factored into the fee 
schedules, credits for developer contributions are addressed on a case-by-case basis.  The City’s current 
ordinances contain such provisions.  Fees-in-lieu of park land dedication are only required in cases 
where new development does not dedicate the required amount of park land.  In addition, developers 
who construct public park facilities are eligible for credits against their park development fees. 
 
 







 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 8 June 28, 2016 


EVALUATION 


 
This section of the report first summarizes the City’s current system of park land dedication 
requirements, fees-in-lieu of dedication, and park development fees.  Then it addresses two specific 
topics: service areas/benefit districts and land use categories.   
 
 


Current System 


 
The City of Madison’s park impact fees and land dedication system includes a needs assessment study, 
development requirements for park land dedication or payment of fees-in-lieu, and park development 
impact fees that must be paid at time of building permit.  The City’s park impact fees and land 
dedication requirements have been in place since 1992.  The current park development fees and fees-
in-lieu of park land dedication are summarized in Table 1 in the Executive Summary. 
 
 


Needs Assessment Study 


 
The City’s current park land dedication requirements and park impact fees are based on a needs 
assessment prepared by the Parks Division in 2002.2  The study compared the desired level of service 
(acres of park land per 1,000 population) to the existing actual level of service provided to existing 
development.  The study determined that the levels of service implied by existing dedication 
requirements varied between single-family and multi-family housing (9.71 acres/1,000 for single-
family and 8.46 acres/1,000 for multi-family), but recommended that the existing requirements be 
retained because they were on average lower than the current overall existing level of service (9.61 
acres/1,000).  The study calculated an average cost per acre for park development based on an 
inventory of improvements in existing parks and the current unit costs for each type of improvement.  
The study recommended continuing to allow fees-in-lieu to be spent anywhere in the city, but 
proposed 11 expenditure districts for the park development impact fees. 
 
 


Park Land Dedication Requirements 


 
Madison’s City Code establishes park land dedication requirements and fees-in-lieu of dedication in 
Chapter 20: General Planning (Sec. 16.23(8)(f)).  Park land dedication or payment of fees-in-lieu is 
required prior to recording of a final subdivision plat, or prior to building permit issuance.   
 
The dedication requirements, which as noted above pre-date the 2002 needs assessment study, are 
1,100 square feet per single-family or duplex unit, 700 square feet per multi-family unit, and 350 square 
feet per age-restricted multi-family unit or rooming house unit.   
 
  


                                                 
2 City of Madison Parks Division, Needs Assessment for Park Dedication and Development Impact Fees, August 6, 2002. 







Evaluation – Current System 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 9 June 28, 2016 


 
Fees-in-lieu are based on the market value of unimproved land in the development, with a cap on the 
land value of $1.50 per square foot in 2002, as adjusted over time by a 5% annual increase.  Credits 
may be provided for private recreational land that is open to the public and meets other standards as 
provided in Sec. 16.23(8)(f).  The requirements to pay fees-in-lieu of dedication are also referenced in 
Chapter 20: Impact Fee Ordinance, where they are referred to as “parkland impact fees” (see Sec. 
20.08(6)).   
 
 


Park Development Impact Fees 


 
Park development impact fees are established in Sec. 20.08(2) of the Impact Fee Ordinance.  Separate 
fees are established for single-family/duplex, multi-family, and age-restricted/rooming house units.  
The fees set forth in the ordinance are those that were effective as of 2002, and they are adjusted 
annually on January 1 based on the change in the Engineering News-Record Construction Cost Index.  
The payment of impact fees is required prior to issuance of the building permit.  The development 
fees are restricted to be spent on park improvements in the same expenditure district in which they 
were collected.  Other provisions in the Impact Fee Ordinance address refunds, developer credits and 
appeals.   







 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 10 June 28, 2016 


 


Service Areas/Benefit Districts 


 
Impact fee systems employ three different types of geographic areas.  They may go by different names, 
but the general terms are:  “service area,” “assessment zone,” and “benefit district.”  This typology is 
useful in understanding the requirements of State law and Madison’s current system. 
 


A “service area” is a geographic area within which a defined set of capital facilities supports a 
measurable level of service.  Impact fees are calculated at the service area level.  A service area 
may be jurisdiction-wide, or the jurisdiction may be broken up into multiple service areas.  If 
there are multiple service areas, the inventory of existing facilities and existing development, 
and the projections of growth and capital needs, must be prepared for each service area. 
 
An “assessment zone” is a geographic area within which a uniform impact fee schedule is 
applied.  In most cases, the assessment zone is the same as the service area.  However, in some 
cases a service area may be divided into multiple assessment zones.  For example, the park net 
cost per person may be calculated jurisdiction-wide, while the park fee schedules may vary 
between assessment zones based on geographic differences in persons per dwelling unit.3   
 
A “benefit district” is a geographic area within which impact fees collected are earmarked to 
be spent.  In general, the idea of a benefit district is that while the service area may be 
reasonable to use for determining levels of service and growth-related costs, the expenditure 
of fees should be more restricted, in order to ensure greater benefit to the fee-paying 
development by requiring a closer proximity of the improvement to the fee-payer.  In some 
cases, the fees collected in a benefit district may be spent in an adjoining district based on 
findings showing the substantial benefit to development in the district.   


 
 


State Law on Service Areas 


 
The Wisconsin act uses the terms “service area,” which it defines as “a geographic area delineated by 
a municipality within which there are public facilities.”  The act further specifies that the required 
public facility needs assessment must identify improvements necessitated by new development “based 
on explicitly identified service areas and service standards.”  The act is using the term “service area” 
consistent with the typology described above, as the geographic scale at which levels of service, capital 
needs and costs are identified. 
 
The act also provides that municipalities may delineate “geographically defined zones within the 
municipality and may impose impact fees on land development in a zone that differ from impact fees 
imposed on land development in other zones.”  By avoiding use of the defined term “service area,” 
the statute appears to contemplate the division of service areas into what the impact fee profession 
refers to as “assessment zones.”   
 


                                                 
3 An example of the use of the assessment zone concept can be found in a study we prepared for Citrus County, Florida’s 
transportation impact fee.  The net cost per vehicle-mile of travel (VMT) was calculated at the county-wide level.  The 
county-wide service area was divided into urban and rural “assessment zones.”  The fees varied by assessment zone based 
on differences in VMT generation per unit.  See Duncan Associates, Citrus County Impact Fee Update, June 2014 
(http://www.citrusbocc.com/plandev/landdev/impact_fees/studies/duncan_june_2014.pdf).  







Evaluation – Service Areas/Benefit Districts 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 11 June 28, 2016 


 
The State act is silent on the benefit district concept, with no mention of the term, or even the word 
“benefit.”  However, the concept of benefit is integral to the concepts of “rational relationship” and 
“proportionate share” – terms that are used, although not defined, in the act.  As discussed in the 
“Legal Framework” chapter, the dominant national case law standard for impact fees is the dual 
rational nexus test.  The dual prongs of that test are “need” and “benefit” – the need for the 
improvements is due to growth, and the improvements funded provide benefit for (or capacity to 
accommodate) new development.  An integral part of the dual rational nexus test is the requirement 
that the fees be proportional to the impact of the new development on the need for the improvements.  
Consequently, subdividing a service area into multiple benefit districts would appear to be compatible 
with Wisconsin law, even if not explicitly contemplated by the enabling act. 
 
 


Current Benefit Districts 


 
Using the typology described above, Madison’s current park impact fee/land dedication system uses 
a city-wide service area for both park development impact fees and park land dedication/fees-in-lieu, 
but divides the city into 11 benefit districts for the purposes of the park development impact fees 
(fees-in-lieu of land dedication have a city-wide benefit district).  A single fee schedule applies 
throughout the city, but park development fees collected in the 11 park development fee benefit 
districts must be spent in the district in which they were collected (see Figure 2). 
 


Figure 2.  Current Park Development Fee Benefit Districts 


 
Source:  City of Madison Parks Division, April 13, 2016. 


  







Evaluation – Service Areas/Benefit Districts 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 12 June 28, 2016 


 
Park development impact fee revenue provides an indication of the amount of residential development 
occurring in each benefit district (fees-in-lieu have a city-wide benefit district).  Over the last five years, 
the central area (Districts 6 and 7) generated the most park development fee revenue, followed by the 
far southwest district (11).  Five districts to the east (1, 2 ,4 and 5) and south (8) have been generating 
less than $20,000 annually – too little to fund significant improvements.  Park development fees and 
fees-in-lieu of dedication received by the City over the last five years are summarized in Table 4. 
 


Table 4.  Park Fee Revenues by Benefit District, 2010-2014 


Benefit District 2010  2011  2012  2013  2014  Total   


1 - Warner $1,225 $6,818 $2,935 $0 $1,031 $12,009


2 - Reindahl $4,740 $16,301 $7,689 $23,234 $1,620 $53,584


3 - Door Creek $5,557 $19,148 $8,316 $130,801 $138,043 $301,865


4 - Yahara Hills $922 $7,216 $7,827 $19,075 $29,907 $64,947


5 - Olbrich $0 $7,673 $2,935 $0 $3,315 $13,923


6 - Tenney - Law $29,698 $56 $96,539 $298,175 $88,504 $512,972


7 - Vilas-Brittingham $72,476 $108,031 $221,744 $662,109 $172,993 $1,237,353


8 - Olin-Turville $7,110 $614 -$2,709 $43,241 $4,199 $52,455


9 - Garner $84,602 $0 $110,690 $12,252 $39,151 $246,695


10 - Far West $32,216 $7,639 $29,350 $27,107 $21,657 $117,969


11 - Elver $79,595 $44,218 $73,235 $155,757 $312,014 $664,819


Total, Dev't Fees $318,141 $217,714 $558,551 $1,371,751 $812,434 $3,278,591


Total, Fees-in-Lieu $611,423 $475,184 $1,280,182 $3,521,143 $1,682,318 $7,570,250


Grand Total $929,564 $692,898 $1,838,733 $4,892,894 $2,494,752 $10,848,841  
Source:  City of Madison Parks Division, December 15, 2015. 


 
 


Evaluation 


 
The concept of a benefit district is that requiring fees collected in an area to be spent in the same area 
strengthens the ability to show that the improvements funded with the fees provide benefit to the fee-
paying development.  However, benefit districts are not the only way to demonstrate that the fee-
paying new development receives a benefit from the expenditure of park impact fees.  A park 
development plan and the programming of capital funds to ensure that all areas of the city have access 
to park facilities can be an alternative approach to ensuring benefit.  The importance of benefit districts 
depends in part on the types of facilities that the jurisdiction provides.  A summary of the City of 
Madison’s existing park land, excluding open space and conservation parks, is provided in Table 5.  
Mini and neighborhood parks account for about 36% of active park land, with most of the remaining 
acreage in community parks.  The City’s two sports complexes, special facilities such as a spray park, 
and pedestrian trafficways account for the remainder. 
 


Table 5.  Existing Active Park Acres 


Type of Park Facility Acres  Percent


Mini Park 194.51 7.0%


Neighborhood Park 796.18 28.6%


Community Park 1,760.04 63.2%


Sports Complex 27.89 1.0%


Special* 3.13 0.1%


Trafficway 4.48 0.2%


Total 2,786.23 100.0%  
*  excluding golf courses, cemeteries, Botanical Gardens 


Source:  City of Madison Parks Division, September 15, 2015. 







Evaluation – Service Areas/Benefit Districts 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 13 June 28, 2016 


 
According to National Park and Recreation Association guidelines, mini parks have a service area 
radius of about a quarter of a mile, neighborhood parks have a service area radius of about half a mile, 
and community parks have a service area radius of about two miles.  The City’s 2012-2017 Park and 
Open Space Plan (POSP) states that new mini parks will generally be provided only where necessary to 
fill gaps in coverage from larger neighborhood parks.  Analysis conducted for the POSP indicates that 
88% of residential neighborhoods are within service areas of mini and neighborhood parks, and 95% 
of residential neighborhoods are within service areas of City community parks. 
 
One way to evaluate the reasonableness of the City’s current benefit district structure is to compare it 
to other jurisdictions.  Table 6 below shows population per benefit district and square miles per district 
for Madison and eight other mid-size U.S. cities that assess park impact fees.  Madison has the most 
benefit districts, the smallest population per district, and the smallest average geographic size per 
district of the nine cities.  As a point of reference, a community park radius of 2 miles equates to a 
service area of about 13 square miles.  Madison’s current benefit districts average 7 square miles, or 
about one-half the service area of a community park.  The other cities all have an average benefit 
district that is at least the size of a community park service area, and more than half have benefit 
districts that average the size of at least three community park service areas (39 acres). 
 


Table 6.  Park Benefit Districts, Selected Cities 


No. of 2010     Land Area Population/ Sq. Miles/


City Districts Population (Sq. Mi.)  District    District  


Santa Fe, NM 1 67,947 37 67,947 37


Sandy City, UT 1 87,461 22 87,461 22


Fort Lauderdale, FL 1 165,521 35 165,521 35


Madison, WI 11 233,209 77 21,201 7


Chandler, AZ 3 236,326 58 78,775 19


Lincoln, NE 7 258,379 90 36,911 13


Raleigh, NC 1 403,892 143 403,892 143


Atlanta, GA 2 419,981 132 209,991 66


Albuquerque, NM 4 545,695 188 136,424 47


Average 3 268,712 87 134,236 43  
Source:  Number of park benefit districts from Duncan Associates survey, August 17, 2015; 2010 total 


population from U.S. Census Bureau; land area from www.wikipedia.org. 


 
The design of park benefit district boundaries must balance proximity to the fee-paying development 
with the need for flexibility to accumulate sufficient funds to make priority improvements, keeping in 
mind that other methods can be also be used to ensure benefit, as noted above.  Using the service area 
radius of a mini or neighborhood park (maximum of less than one square mile) would clearly be too 
small, especially given that two-thirds of the City’s active park acreage is in facilities with much larger 
service areas.  Using the service area of a community park (13 square miles) would be more reasonable, 
and this would indicate the need for about six benefit districts, about half the number that Madison 
has currently.  Doubling that standard, with park benefit districts averaging the service area size of 
two community parks, would indicate the need for three benefit districts, and tripling it, consistent 
with the average benefit district size of the nine cities surveyed, would indicate the need for only two 
benefit districts.  Finally, the City could reasonably have a city-wide benefit district, which would be 
only slightly larger than the average of the nine cities surveyed, and rely on programming to steer the 
fee-funded improvements to growing, park-poor areas – something that it already seems to be doing 
fairly well, given that 95% of residential neighborhoods are within service areas of existing community 
parks.   







Evaluation – Service Areas/Benefit Districts 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 14 June 28, 2016 


 


Recommendations 


 
The City should amend its ordinance as part of this update to provide additional flexibility in the 
expenditure of development fees.  The current 11 benefit districts are much smaller than necessary, 
and make it difficult to accumulate enough revenue in some districts to fund meaningful 
improvements.  The City could consolidate existing districts, create a smaller number of new districts, 
allow fees collected in one district to be spent on an improvement in an adjacent district, or have a 
single city-wide benefit district (as it currently does for fees-in-lieu) and use the programming of 
expenditures to ensure benefit to developments paying the fee. 
 
City staff proposes replacing the current 11 park development fee benefit districts with four districts, 
as shown in Figure 3.  In addition, 20% of the park development fees collected in each of the four 
districts would be placed in a fifth, city-wide benefit district account.  These changes would allow 
sufficient funds to be accumulated to make major improvements, and provide needed flexibility in 
matching expenditure needs with available revenue. 
 


Figure 3.  Proposed Park Development Fee Benefit Districts 


 
 
 







 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 15 June 28, 2016 


 


Land Use Categories 


 
The definitions of the land use categories to be included in the fee schedules have important 
implications for the amounts of the fees assessed on different land uses and the ease or difficulty of 
impact fee administration. 
 
The 2002 needs assessment study calculated park land dedication requirements and park development 
impact fees for two types of residential development – single-family/duplex and multi-family.  
However, the park land dedication requirements and the park development impact fee ordinance apply 
to three residential categories – single-family/duplex, multi-family, and rooming house/age-restricted 
multi-family unit.   The dedication requirement and fees for a lodging unit (bedroom) and an age-
restricted multi-family unit are one-half the rate for a multi-family unit.   
 


Group Quarters 


 
The application of the park impact fees and dedication requirements to rooming houses introduces a 
degree of uncertainty related to whether the requirements also apply or should apply to other types of 
transient or even institutional living arrangements.   
 
Transient group quarters.  Rooming houses (called lodging houses in the zoning code) are defined as 
a “house where more than five (5) paying guests are provided with meals and lodging, on a monthly 
or longer-term basis.”  Applying these requirements to a somewhat transient living arrangement begs 
the question as to whether they should also apply to other transient housing types, which may also 
provide lodging for as long as a month, such as hotels, hostels and tourist rooming houses.   There 
are a number of jurisdictions in the country that assess at least some portion of park impact fees on 
transient, seasonal, and tourist-oriented lodging facilities such as hotels, motels, bed and breakfast 
inns, and hostels.  This is most commonly done for regional facilities that attract many tourists. 
 
Longer-term group quarters.  Other types of group quarters living arrangements where residents do 
not occupy separate dwelling units may also generate demand for public park facilities.  These include 
community living arrangements, convents, dependency living arrangements, dormitories, fraternities 
and sororities, and housing cooperatives. 
 
Institutional group quarters.  Institutional living arrangements are another potential category.  
Hospitals are generally not assessed park impact fees, because of the limited term of occupancy, but 
other types of medical institutions, including nursing homes, assisted living facilities, congregate care 
facilities, mental institutions or psychiatric hospitals, could generate some demand for public park 
facilities.   
 


Dwelling Units 


 
The ordinance is clear that dwelling units should be assessed, although it is not always clear how some 
types of dwelling units should be treated.  A consideration in evaluating these categories is the need 
to quantify the demand from existing residential units.  This can best be done by preparing an 
inventory of the number of existing units in each category, as well as a determination of the average 
number of residents in each dwelling unit by category. 
 







Evaluation – Land Use Categories 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 16 June 28, 2016 


 
The residential categories that are available from the Census Bureau are single-family detached, single-
family attached (townhouse), duplex, other multi-family, and mobile home.  Persons per dwelling unit 
for the various housing types are summarized in Table 7 below. 
 


Table 7.  Census Housing Categories 


Persons/


Housing Type Unit


Single-Family Detached 2.45


Single-Family Attached 2.00


Duplex 2.48


Other Multi-Family 1.62


Mobile Home 2.55


Total 2.04  
Source:  See Table 8. 


 
Single-family/duplex.  The current single-family/duplex category applies to single-family detached 
units, duplexes, and twin homes (side-by-side attached units on separate lots). The Census Bureau 
does not have a twin-home category – this housing type may be classified as duplex or single-family 
attached.  Single-family detached and duplex units in Madison do appear to have similar occupancy 
characteristics, although the sample size for duplexes is relatively small.  Consequently, combining 
these two Census categories into a single assessment category would appear to be reasonable. 
 
Multi-family.  The multi-family category includes rental apartments, single-family attached units 
(townhouses), and residential condominiums.   
 
Accessory dwelling units.  The zoning code allows accessory dwelling units to be created, whether 
within an existing single-family home or as a separate structure on the same lot.  No data are available 
on occupancies for accessory dwelling units.  It would be reasonable to use the multi-family rate for 
this category. 
 
Mobile home parks.  Mobile home parks and manufactured home developments are currently treated 
the same as single-family detached homes.  This is appropriate for a mobile home located on a 
residential lot, but may be administratively cumbersome for mobile home parks, where mobile homes 
may come and go frequently.  However, due to higher land costs, the City is not likely to see any new 
mobile home parks being developed in the future, although some existing parks outside the current 
city limits may be annexed.  According to the Census Bureau, mobile homes account for only about 
0.7% of Madison’s housing units.  A reasonable approach would be to exempt the placement of a 
mobile home in an existing mobile home park space.  Mobile homes placed on a single-family lot 
should continue to be assessed at the single-family rate. 
 
Age-restricted housing.  The current ordinance assesses multi-family units that are deed restricted to 
occupancy by persons 55 years of age or older for at least 30 years at one-half the multi-family rate.  
The assumption appears to be that age-restricted units either have fewer persons per unit or otherwise 
have less impact on the need for parks than unrestricted units.  Such a differential should be based on 
some data showing less impact on the need for parks.  The American Community Survey data from 
the Census Bureau could be used for this purpose – those data contain information on the presence 
of residents 60 years and older, which could be a proxy for age-restricted units.    







Evaluation – Land Use Categories 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 17 June 28, 2016 


 
Large multi-family units.  The City has been experiencing significant growth in the number of new 
multi-family units with four or more bedrooms, primarily geared toward college student housing.  
Census data from the American Community Survey are available on occupancies for multi-family units 
by number of bedrooms.  These data could be used to support a higher fee for large multi-family 
units. 
 
Lodging houses.  Requirements for lodging or rooming houses, such as dormitories, are currently 
based on one-half the multi-family rate.  These requirements should be based on some data related to 
the need for parks.  The American Community Survey data from the Census Bureau could be used 
for this purpose, with the requirement per lodging unit (bedroom) based on the average number of 
persons per bedroom for multi-family units. 
 
 


Recommendations 


 
■ The City’s current land use categories – single-family detached/duplex, multi-family, lodging 


house and age-restricted multi-family – appear to be reasonable.  The lodging house category 
should continue to apply to rooming and boarding houses, dormitories, and fraternity/sorority 
houses.  It should also continue to exclude transient and institutional group quarters.  


 
■ Requirements for age-restricted multi-family units and lodging units should be based on 


available data on persons per bedroom for large multi-family units. 
 
■ A recent local development trend is the construction of multi-family units with four or more 


bedrooms, which tend to be used for student housing and function much like dormitories.  A 
potential fee for such units is calculated in the needs assessment. 


 
■ Accessory units should be treated the same as multi-family units. 
 
 







 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 18 June 28, 2016 


NEEDS ASSESSMENT STUDY 


 
This portion of the report calculates updated park land dedication requirements, fees-in-lieu of park 
land dedication, and park development impact fees.  First, however, it is necessary to address the topic 
of service units. 
 
 


Service Units 


 
Analyzing the impact of new development on the need for park facilities requires the definition of a 
common unit of demand, referred to as a “service unit.”  This needs assessment study uses residents 
as the service unit for the park impact fees and dedication requirements.  The need for, usage of and 
benefit from public parks and recreational facilities are primarily attributable to residential 
development.  Residents include those living in households (i.e., occupants of dwelling units such as 
single-family units, apartments, etc.), and those living in group quarters (such as college dormitories, 
rooming and boarding houses, group homes, orphanages, monasteries and convents).  Excluded from 
the residential population for the purposes of this analysis are institutionalized persons residing in 
group quarters, such as adult correctional facilities, juvenile detention facilities, skilled nursing 
facilities, psychiatric hospitals, and residential schools for people with disabilities.  The park service 
unit is a person residing in a dwelling unit or in non-institutionalized group quarters. 
 
 


Person per Unit Multipliers 


 
The multipliers used in calculating the fees by housing type are “persons per unit,” rather than “average 
household size.”  Persons per unit is the ratio of household population to the total number of dwelling 
units, while average household size is the ratio of household population to the number of occupied 
units.  Persons per unit takes into account that not all units are occupied at any point in time.  Persons 
per unit and average household size by housing type for Madison are presented in Table 8. 
 


Table 8.  Persons per Unit by Housing Type 


Sample Total Occup. Household Avg. HH Persons/


Housing Type Units  Units Units Residents Size Unit


Single-Family Detached 890 45,743 44,643 111,929 2.51 2.45


Single-Family Attached 117 6,791 6,438 13,581 2.11 2.00


Duplex 61 3,875 3,713 9,625 2.59 2.48


Multi-Family 697 47,636 43,846 77,043 1.76 1.62


Mobile Home 19 1,093 1,093 2,789 2.55 2.55


Total 1,784 105,138 99,733 214,967 2.16 2.04


SF Det./Duplex/Mobile Home 970 50,711 49,449 124,343 2.51 2.45


Multi-Family/SF Attached 814 54,427 50,284 90,624 1.80 1.67


Total 1,784 105,138 99,733 214,967 2.16 2.04


2010 100% Count n/a 108,843 102,516 222,469 2.17 2.04


     Weighted Estimates     


 
Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 2009-2011 3% sample microdata file for Madison; 2010 


100% count data for Madison from U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census. 


 







Needs Assessment – Service Units 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 19 June 28, 2016 


 
Lower requirements apply to age-restricted multi-family units.  The City’s current park land dedication 
requirements and development fees assess such uses at half the multi-family rate.  While the Census 
does not specifically identify age-restricted units, multi-family units with at least one resident 60 years 
old or older can be used as a reasonable proxy.  Multi-family units with elderly residents tend to have 
1.30 persons per unit, as shown in Table 9.   
 


Table 9.  Persons per Multi-Family Unit by Presence of Elderly 


Weighted Estimates


Sample Occup. Household Avg. HH Persons/ 


Presence of 60+ Year Olds Units  Units Residents Size Unit      


One or More 150 7,715 10,858 1.41 1.30


None 636 42,569 79,766 1.87 1.73


All Multi-Family Units 786 50,284 90,624 1.80 1.67  
Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 2009-2011 3% sample microdata file for 


Madison; persons per unit for all multi-family units from Table 8; persons per unit by presence of elderly 


based on ratio of persons per unit to average household size for all multi-family units. 


. 


The City has been experiencing significant growth in the number of new multi-family units with four 
or more bedrooms, primarily geared toward college student housing.  Census data from the American 
Community Survey are available on occupancies for multi-family units by number of bedrooms, 
although the sample size for units with four or more bedrooms in Madison is too small to be useful 
(only 22 such units were included in the latest survey).  However, the 3% sample for the state of 
Wisconsin includes a large enough sample for statistically-reliable results.  The results from the state-
wide data are adjusted for the higher persons per unit for all multi-family units in Madison to estimate 
persons per unit for Madison.  As shown in Table 10, a multi-family unit in Madison with four or 
more bedrooms will tend to have 3.34 residents on average. 
 


Table 10.  Persons per Unit for Large Multi-Family Units 


Wisconsin Wisconsin Madison  


Sample  Total    Household Persons/ Persons/ 


Number of Bedrooms Units Units   Residents Unit      Unit      


Three or Fewer 9,879 552,343 852,794 1.54 1.62


Four or More 354 16,324 52,082 3.19 3.34


All Multi-Family Units 10,233 568,667 904,876 1.59 1.67


     Weighted Data -WI 


 
Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 2009-2011 3% sample microdata 


file for Wisconsin; Madison persons per unit for all multi-family units from Table 8; Madison 


persons per unit by number of bedrooms based on ratio of Madison to Wisconsin persons per 


unit for all multi-family units. 


 
The City’s park fees and dedication requirements also apply to rooming or lodging houses, based on 
the number of “lodging units,” or sleeping rooms.  While the Census does not provide persons per 
bedroom for group quarters living arrangements, multi-family units can be used as a reasonable proxy.  
The data indicate that lodging houses are likely to have a little under one person per bedroom (or 
lodging unit), as shown in Table 11.   
 


Table 11.  Persons per Lodging Unit 


Total Multi-FamilyHousehold Residents 90,624


÷ Total Multi-Family Bedrooms 97,783


Persons per Multi-Family Bedroom 0.93  
Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 


2009-2011 3% sample microdata file for Madison. 







Needs Assessment – Service Units 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 20 June 28, 2016 


 
Recommended persons per unit multipliers by housing type are summarized in Table 12.  The persons 
per unit figure for multi-family units that are not large units and are not age-restricted is based on data 
for all multi-family units, because the number of large and age-restricted multi-family units in Madison 
is unknown and likely to be small, having little effect on the average.  The updated number of persons 
per unit is lower than what was used in the 2002 study for single-family and multi-family units and 
lodging houses, and higher for age-restricted multi-family units, as well as large multi-family units.   
 


Table 12.  Recommended Persons per Unit by Housing Type 


Percent


Housing Type Unit Current Updated Change


Single-Family Detached/Duplex Dwelling 2.60 2.45 -6%


Multi-Family Dwelling 1.90 1.67 -12%


Multi-Family, 4 or More Bedrooms Dwelling 1.90 3.34 76%


Multi-Family, Age Restricted Dwelling 0.95 1.30 37%


Lodging House Bedroom 0.95 0.93 -2%


Persons/Unit


 
Source:  Single-family and multi-family from Table 8; large multi-family from Table 10; age-


restricted multi-family from Table 9; lodging unit from Table 11.  


 
 


Total Service Units 


 
To determine the existing level of service for park facilities, it is necessary to determine the total 
number of service units (noninstitutionalized population) in Madison being served by existing parks.  
For household population, the number of residents can be estimated by multiplying the number of 
dwelling units in each land use category by the persons per unit identified above.   
 
The first step in determining current household population is to estimate the number of existing 
dwelling units by housing type.  Census data from 2010 provide a good starting point, as summarized 
in Table 13.  Sample data, which provide a breakdown by housing type, are adjusted slightly to reflect 
the 100% count of 108,843 units.   
 


Table 13.  Dwelling Units by Housing Type, 2010 


2010  2010 2010     


Housing Type Sample Census Estimate 


Single-Family Detached 46,575 n/a 46,876


Single-Family Attached 6,160 n/a 6,200


Duplex 5,485 n/a 5,521


Multi-Family 49,190 n/a 49,508


Mobile Home/RV 733 n/a 738


Total 108,143 108,843 108,843  
Source: “2010 Sample” data are U.S. Census American Community Survey 


published tables based on sampling during 2009-2013; “2010 Census” is 100% 


count for all housing units; “2010 Estimate” is sample estimate adjusted by ratio 


of 2010 Census count to sample total. 


 
  







Needs Assessment – Service Units 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 21 June 28, 2016 


 
The dwelling units by type shown above are aggregated into the two major impact fee categories 
(single-family detached/duplex and multi-family) in Table 14 below.  Permits for additional units 
issued over the last five years are added to the 2010 quantities to estimate the number of units in 2015 
by housing type.  These are multiplied by persons per unit and summed to get total household 
population.  The current number of noninstitutionalized group quarters residents is derived from the 
2010 Census count and the estimated 2010-2015 growth in household population.  Adding household 
population and noninstitutionalized group quarters residents yields the 2015 estimate of 239,196 park 
service units (noninstitutionalized population). 
 


Table 14.  Estimated Park Service Units, 2015 


2010   2010-14  2015      Persons/  2015   


Housing Type Census Permits  Estimate Unit      Persons


Single-Family/Duplex/Mobile Home 53,135 892 54,027 2.45 132,474


Multi-Family/Single-Family Attached 55,708 3,059 58,767 1.67 97,850


Total Dwelling Units 108,843 3,951 112,794 230,324


Noninstitutionalized Group Quarters Residents 8,569 8,872


Total Noninstitutionalized Population 239,196  
Source:  2010 estimates derived from Census data from Table 13; number of units permitted over the last five years from 


City of Madison, September 8, 2015; 2015 estimate is sum of 2010 and permit figures; persons per unit from Table 8; 


noninstitutionalized group quarters residents based on 2010 Census 100% count and growth in household population (ratio 


of 2015 dwelling unit population from this table to 2010 Census 100% count from Table 8). 


 
 







 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 22 June 28, 2016 


 


Land Dedication Requirements 


 
The City’s park land dedication requirements, expressed in terms of the number of acres or square 
feet of land per unit that are required to be dedicated for parks, are currently based on standards that 
pre-date the study prepared by City staff in 2002.  This section of the report updates those 
requirements based on the existing level of service.    
 
The current park land dedication requirements are based on a city-wide service area.  The acres (or 
square feet) per unit by housing type are based on the city-wide level of service (acres per 1,000 
population) and city-wide persons per unit by housing type.  This continues to be reasonable, because 
the City provides a relatively uniform level of service throughout the city (95% of residential 
neighborhoods are within service areas of existing community parks), and the average number of 
persons per unit by housing type is likely to be similar throughout the city.   
 
The dedication requirements should be based on the existing level of service, or a lower-than-existing 
level of service.  The existing city-wide level of service is defined as the ratio of acres of active parkland 
to noninstitutionalized population.  The current level of service provided by existing City parks is 
11.65 acres per 1,000 population, as summarized in Table 15.   
 


Table 15.  Existing Park Level of Service 


Type of Park Facility Acres  


Mini Park 194.51


Neighborhood Park 796.18


Community Park 1,760.04


Sports Complex 27.89


Special* 3.13


Trafficway 4.48


Total Active Park Acres 2,786.23


÷ Current Noninstitutionalized Population (000s) 239.196


Acres per 1,000 Population 11.65  
* excludes golf courses, cemeteries, botanical gardens 


Source:  Park acres from inventory in Table 27; current 


noninstitutionalized population from Table 14. 


 
 
The City’s adopted 2012-2017 Parks and Open Space Plan provides for a level of service of 10 acres per 
1,000 population for mini, neighborhood and community parks. This adopted level of service needs 
to be adjusted slightly to take into account that the definition of active parks has been expanded in 
this study to include sports complexes, trafficways (excluding the State Street/Mall Concourse), and 
some special parks (Bear Mound Park, Cypress Spray Park and Yahara Boat Ramp and Storage). This 
results in an adjusted adopted level of service of 10.13 acres per 1,000 population, as shown in Table 
16.  The updated park land dedication requirements are based on this adjusted adopted level of service. 
 
  







Needs Assessment – Land Dedication 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 23 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 16.  Adopted Park Level of Service 


Existing Active Park Acres 2,786.23


÷ Existing Mini, Neighborhood and Community Park Acres 2,750.73


Ratio of Total Active Park to Mini, NH & Comm. Park Acres 1.013


x Adopted LOS (Acres/1,000) for Mini, NH & Comm. Parks 10.00


Adjusted Adopted LOS (Acres/1,000) 10.13


Adjusted Adopted LOS (Square Feet per Person) 441  
Source:  Existing active park acres and existing mini, neighborhood and community 


park acres from Table 15; adopted LOS for mini, neighborhood and community 


parks from City of Madison, 2012-2017 Park and Open Space Plan, 2012. 


 
Updated dedication requirements are calculated in Table 17 by multiplying persons per unit by the 
adjusted adopted level of service of 441 square feet of park land per person.  Compared to current 
requirements, the updated dedication requirements are similar for single-family and multi-family units, 
but are significantly higher for less common housing types. 
 


Table 17.  Updated Park Land Dedication Requirements 


Persons/ Sq. Ft./ Sq. Ft./ Percent


Housing Type Unit Unit    Person Unit    Current Change


Single-Family Detached/Duplex Dwelling 2.45 441 1,081 1,100 -2%


Multi-Family Dwelling 1.67 441 734 700 5%


Multi-Family, 4 or More Bedrooms Dwelling 3.23 441 1,424 700 103%


Multi-Family, Age Restricted Dwelling 1.30 441 573 350 64%


Lodging House Bedroom 0.93 441 410 350 17%  
Source:  Persons per unit from Table 12; sq. ft. per person from Table 15; current requirement from Table 1. 


 







 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 24 June 28, 2016 


 


Fees-in-lieu of Dedication 


 
The fees-in-lieu of park land dedication are currently based on the value of the subject property prior 
to development, up to a maximum cost per square foot.  The maximum cost per square foot has been 
inflated at 5% annually since it was adopted in 2002, and currently stands at $2.83 per square foot (or 
$123,208 per acre).  While land values vary significantly by area within the city, the maximum fees 
calculated in 2002 were based on raw suburban land values.  The City’s real estate office indicates that 
the current maximum value per square foot is within the range of current prices for raw suburban 
land, although on the low end (see Table 18).   
 


Table 18.  Land Costs per Square Foot by Area 


Low  High  


Central Core $20.00 $130.00


Developable Urban $15.00 $30.00


Raw Suburban $2.00 $4.00  
Source:  City of Madison, Office of Real Estate Services, 


Economic Development Division, August 25, 2015. 


 
This update proposes to separate the fees-in-lieu from the value of the land to be subdivided.  The 
City can use the fees to purchase land anywhere in the city, and consequently the value of land to be 
subdivided is not strongly related to the cost to the City to purchase park land.  This problem is 
addressed in the current requirements by setting a maximum value per square foot, based on the 
average price of raw suburban land.  However, under the current system developers may provide 
appraisals showing that the value of the land they are subdividing is lower than the maximum value, 
thus qualifying for a reduced fee-in-lieu.  This often results in arguments over developer versus City 
appraisals, which are unnecessary because the value of the subdividing property is not strongly related 
to the City’s cost to purchase additional park land.  Consequently, the value per square foot will be 
the value used in the fee-in-lieu assessments, without reference to the value of the land to be 
subdivided. 
 
This update uses an objective measure to determine average land values, based on the city-wide 
average land value per square foot in the City’s most recently certified tax roll.  This readily-available 
measure also provides a sound basis for the annual inflation index, with the annual adjustment being 
based on the percentage change in average value per square foot between the most recent two years.  
For example, City Assessor data show that the average value of land increased from $3.19 per square 
foot in 2014 to $3.24 per square foot in 2015, an annual increase of 1.57%.  The current average land 
value of $3.24 per square foot ($141,134 per acre) will be used in this update.  While this is 15% higher 
than the current maximum value, it is within the range of raw suburban land values. 
 
Based on the updated land dedication requirements and the current average value per square foot, the 
updated fees-in-lieu are calculated in Table 19.  Given that the updated cost per square foot is 15% 
higher than the current maximum value, the percentage changes in fees-in-lieu by housing type are 
greater than they are for the dedication requirements. 
  







Needs Assessment – Fees-in-Lieu 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 25 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 19.  Updated Fees-in-lieu of Dedication 


Sq. Ft./ Cost/   Fee/  Percent


Housing Type Unit Unit    Sq. Ft.  Unit   Current Change


Single-Family Detached/Duplex Dwelling 1,081 $3.24 $3,502 $3,111 13%


Multi-Family Dwelling 734 $3.24 $2,378 $1,980 20%


Multi-Family, 4 or More Bedrooms Dwelling 1,424 $3.24 $4,614 $1,980 133%


Multi-Family, Age Restricted Dwelling 573 $3.24 $1,857 $990 88%


Lodging House Bedroom 410 $3.24 $1,328 $990 34%  
Source:  Sq. ft. per unit from Table 17; cost per sq. ft. is average value of land in the city in 2015 from the City Assessor’s 


office, provided by Parks Division on November 11, 2015; current fee per unit from Table 1. 


 







 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 26 June 28, 2016 


 


Development Fees 


 
The updated park development fees will be based on the existing level of service.  This is measured as 
the replacement cost of existing improvements per service unit.  As shown in Table 20, the total 
replacement cost of existing park improvements is $171 million.   
 


Table 20.  Existing Park Improvement Costs 


Park Improvement Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost


General Ballfield Backstop 98 $3,500 $343,000


Reservable Baseball with Backstop 2 $1,500,000 $3,000,000


Basketball 138 $60,000 $8,280,000


Beach 13 $50,000 $650,000


Benches 607 $2,500 $1,517,500


Bike Polo Field 1 $15,000 $15,000


Bike Rack 52 $2,500 $130,000


Boat Launch 19 $150,000 $2,850,000


Canoe/Kayak Rental Facility 2 $500,000 $1,000,000


Canoe/Kayak Storage 73 $6,000 $438,000


Cricket 1 $100,000 $100,000


Disc Golf 2 $60,000 $120,000


Dog On Leash Area 11 $10,000 $110,000


Dog Park 7 $85,000 $595,000


Fishing 26 $10,000 $260,000


Football 6 $20,000 $120,000


Hiking ( 3 miles, mowed) 5 $10,000 $50,000


Horseshoe/Bocce 5 $10,000 $50,000


Ice Rink 16 $100,000 $1,600,000


Lacrosse 3 $10,000 $30,000


Light Pole (athletic) 163 $15,000 $2,445,000


Light Pole (other) 358 $8,000 $2,864,000


Open Play Field (inc. soccer/backstop) 141 $15,000 $2,115,000


Parking Lot 45 $125,000 $5,625,000


Playground 173 $125,000 $21,625,000


Pool 1 $7,000,000 $7,000,000


Restroom 31 $150,000 $4,650,000


Scenic Overlook 12 $20,000 $240,000


Sun Shelter 48 $90,000 $4,320,000


Shelter with Restrooms 19 $500,000 $9,500,000


Skate Park 1 $750,000 $750,000


Ski Trail (3 mile, mowed) 1 $15,000 $15,000


Sledding Hill 7 $10,000 $70,000


Reservable Soccer 91 $450,000 $40,950,000


Reservable Softball 23 $550,000 $12,650,000


Spray Park 3 $950,000 $2,850,000


Picnic Tables 889 $1,200 $1,066,800


Tennis 86 $80,000 $6,880,000


Ultimate Frisbee 8 $10,000 $80,000


Volleyball 28 $12,000 $336,000


Buildings (Insured Value)* n/a n/a $23,801,464


Total Park Development Cost $171,091,764  
* excludes buildings in non-active parks or included in standard types (e.g., restrooms) 


Source:  Quantities from Table 27 in Appendix A; unit costs from Parks Division, December 15, 


2015; insured values from Parks Division, October 6, 2015.   


  







Needs Assessment – Development Fees 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 27 June 28, 2016 


 
Dividing total replacement value of existing park improvements by total existing service units results 
in a gross park development cost of $715 per person to maintain the current level of service, as shown 
in Table 21. 
 


Table 21.  Park Development Cost per Service Unit 


Total Park Development Cost $171,091,764


÷ Park Service Units 239,196


Park Development Cost per Service Unit $715  
Source:  Cost from Table 20; service units from Table 14. 


 
As described in the Legal Framework, revenue credits are clearly required for revenue generated by 
new development and used to remedy existing deficiencies, or to retire outstanding debt on existing 
facilities that are providing the current level of service for existing development.  There are no existing 
deficiencies, because the fees are based on the actual existing level of service.  However, the updated 
park development fees should give credit for future tax revenues that will be used to pay outstanding 
debt incurred to expand the City’s park system and provide the current level of service on which the 
fees are based.   
 
As summarized in Table 22, the City currently has $14.58 million in outstanding park-related debt.  
Although some of this debt may have been incurred for park land acquisition, all of the debt credit 
will be applied against the development fee.  Most of the debt will be retired with City general funds, 
although a small portion of the debt is being repaid with park development fees collected in the Door 
Creek and Tenney-Law benefit districts.  
 


Table 22.  Outstanding Park Debt 


Outstanding Debt to be Retired with General Funds $14,123,544


Outstanding Debt to be Repaid with Impact Fees from Door Creek District $279,870


Outstanding Debt to be Repaid with Impact Fees from Tenney-Law District $179,983


Total Outstanding Park Debt $14,583,397  
Source:  City of Madison, September 23, 2015 (figures as of October 2, 2015). 


 
A straight-forward method that ensures that new development is not required to pay for existing 
facilities, through funds used for debt retirement, as well as for new facilities through impact fees, is 
to calculate the fee based on the net cost, or total replacement cost less outstanding debt.  This puts 
new development on the same footing as existing development in terms of the share of capital costs 
funded through debt.  As shown in Table 23, dividing the outstanding debt by the number of existing 
service units results in a debt credit of $61 per person.     
 


Table 23.  Park Debt Credit per Service Unit 


Outstanding Park Debt $14,583,397


÷ Park Service Units (Persons) 239,196


Debt Credit per Service Unit (Person) $61  
Source:  Outstanding park debt from Table 22; park service units 


from Table 14.   


 
  







Needs Assessment – Development Fees 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 28 June 28, 2016 


 
Credit should also be provided for future grant revenue that can be anticipated based on historical 
funding.  As shown in Table 24, the City has received about $2.5 million in park grant funding over 
the last five years.  Using that as a reasonable guide to the future, new development will generate the 
present value equivalent of $34 per service unit (person) over the next 25 years in grant revenue.   
 


Table 24.  Park Grant Credit per Service Unit 


Year Grantee Grant Park Amount


2011 State - DNR Urban Rivers Program Filut $46,290


2011 State - DNR Urban Rivers Program Blettner $127,000


2011 USFWS Partners for Fish & Wildlife Cherokee $3,918


2011 USFWS Partners for Fish & Wildlife Edna Taylor $10,000


2012 USFWS Partners for Fish & Wildlife Prairie Ridge $2,085


2012 State - DNR Esther Beach Expansion Esther $411,000


2012 Federal Mayor's Institute on City Design Central $50,000


2013 State - DNR Recreational Boating Facilities Marshall $32,700


2013 USFWS Partners for Fish & Wildlife Cherokee $5,000


2014 State - DNR Merrill Springs Park Expansion Merrill $200,000


2014 State - DNR Urban Forestry Catastrophic Storm Grant storm damage $19,493


2015 U.S.DOT Transportation Equity Act Central $1,548,768


Total Grant Awards, 2011-2015 $2,456,254


÷ Number of Years 5


Annual Grant Funding $491,251


÷ Park Service Units (Noninstitutionalized Population) 239,196


Annual Grant Funding per Person $2.05


x Present Value Factor for 25 Years of Future Funding 16.64


Grant Funding Credit per Person $34  
Source:  Grant funding from City of Madison, December 15, 2015; park service units from Table 14; present value 


factor based on 3.41% discount rate, which is the average interest rate for state and local bonds for January 2016 


from the U.S. Federal Reserve. 


 
 
Deducting the debt and grant credits per service unit from the cost per service unit leaves a net cost 
of $620 per service unit for the park development fee. 
 


Table 25.  Park Development Net Cost per Service Unit 


Park Development Cost per Person $715


– Debt Credit per Person -$61


– Grant Credit per Person -$34


Net Development Cost per Service Unit $620  
Source:  Cost per person from Table 21; debt credit from Table 23; 


grant credit from Table 24.   


 
  







Needs Assessment – Development Fees 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 29 June 28, 2016 


 
The updated park development fees are the product of persons per unit by housing type and net cost 
per person, as shown in Table 26.  The updated development fees are roughly 40-50% higher than 
current fees for single-family and most multi-family units, with larger increases for the less common 
housing types. 
 


Table 26.  Updated Park Development Fees 


Persons/ Net Cost/ Fee/  Percent


Housing Type Unit Unit    Person  Unit   Current Change


Single-Family Detached/Duplex Dwelling 2.45 $620 $1,520 $1,081 41%


Multi-Family Dwelling 1.67 $620 $1,032 $695 48%


Multi-Family, 4 or More Bedrooms Dwelling 3.23 $620 $2,003 $695 188%


Multi-Family, Age Restricted Dwelling 1.30 $620 $806 $348 132%


Lodging House Bedroom 0.93 $620 $577 $348 66%  
Source:  Persons per unit from Table 12, net cost per person from Table 23; current fee from Table 1.   


 
 
 


Effect on Affordable Housing 


 
The City of Madison has over 108,000 existing dwelling units, many of which are affordable to a wide 
range of households.  The City has prepared a Comprehensive Plan which includes objectives and 
policies to increase housing affordability within the City.  This Plan builds on plans targeted specifically 
at providing affordable housing including the Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy, the Five 
Year Housing and Community Development (Consolidated) Plan and the Madison Community 
Development Authority’s Public Housing Plans.  The City has also worked to preserve the quality of 
its existing housing stock, and to provide new housing at higher relative densities as one way to reduce 
the per unit cost of land and to increase the efficiency of service provided to new housing units.  
 
Impact fees charged for new development in the City cover the cost of providing basic infrastructure 
and capital facilities that are a prerequisite for development in the areas covered by the fees.  The 
amount of the fees is directly related to the need to provide capital facilities that are necessitated by 
and attributable to the benefitting development.  These fees represent a small proportion of the total 
costs to provide housing when considering the cost of land, other infrastructure requirements, the 
cost to construct housing, and financing.  Hence, the effect of park impact fees, as well as the 
cumulative effect of all the impact fees imposed by the City of Madison, should not have a significant 
negative impact on the availability of affordable housing within the community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 30 June 28, 2016 


APPENDIX A:  EXISTING PARK INVENTORY 


 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory 


Park Name Acres B
a
l
l
f
i
e
l
d


 
B


a
c
k
s
t
o


p


B
a
s
e
b


a
l
l


B
a
s
k
e
t
b


a
l
l


B
e
a
c
h


B
e
n


c
h


B
i
k
e
 
P


o
l
o


 
F
i
e
l
d


B
i
k
e
 
R


a
c
k


B
o


a
t
 
L


a
u


n
c
h


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
R


e
n


t
a
l


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
S


t
o


r
a
g


e


C
r
i
c
k
e
t


D
i
s
c
 
G


o
l
f


D
o


g
 
O


n
 
L


e
a
s
h


 
A


r
e
a


D
o


g
 
P


a
r
k


F
i
s
h


i
n


g


F
o


o
t
b


a
l
l


H
i
k
i
n


g


H
o


r
s
e
s
h


o
e
/
B


o
c
c
e


I
c
e
 
R


i
n


k


B.B. Clarke Beach Park 1.73 1 6 1 1 3 1


Badger Park 1.78 1 1 1


Beld Triangle Park 0.12


Berkley Park 3.10 1 1 3


Bernies Beach Park 1.17 1 1


Brentwood Park 1.97 1 1 4


Brigham Park 3.37 1 2


Britta Park 1.60


Camar Park 3.47


Churchill Heights Park 3.03 1 2


De Volis Park 2.19


Doncaster Park 0.28 3


Dudgeon School Park 1.64 1 1 1


Edward Klief Park 1.67 1 1 2


Eken Park 2.07 1 1 4


Elmside Circle Park 1.06 7


Esther Beach Park 1.60 1 1 1 1 1


Everglade Park 3.67 1


Filene Park 1.82 7 1


Fisher Street Park 0.30


Flad Park 2.76 1 1 1 1


Giddings Park 1.53 3 2 1


Glenwood Park 2.89 1 3


Greenside Park 2.51


Hammersley Park 3.13


Hampton Court Park 0.10


Hawthorne Park 0.98 1 4


Hiawatha Circle Park 1.31


Hillington Triangle Park 0.68 1 6 1


Hillpoint Park 2.25 2


Honeysuckle Park 3.79 1 1 1


Hudson Park 4.75 1 2 1


Hughes Park 0.27


Ice Age Ridge Park 3.67 1


Indian Hills Park 2.57 1 1


Kerr - Mcgee Triangle Park 0.14 3


Kestrel Park 2.16


Lake View Heights Park 2.78 1 1 1


Lakeland-Schiller Triangle Park 0.09


Lederberg Park 1.09  
continued on following page 


  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 31 June 28, 2016 


 
 


Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name L
a
c
r
o


s
s
e


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
a
t
h


l
e
t
i
c
)


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
o


t
h


e
r
)


O
p


e
n


 
P


l
a
y
 
F
i
e
l
d


P
a
r
k
i
n


g
 
L


o
t


P
l
a
y
g


r
o


u
n


d


P
o


o
l


R
e
s
t
r
o


o
m


S
c
e
n


i
c
 
O


v
e
r
l
o


o
k


S
u


n
 
S


h
e
l
t
e
r


S
h


e
l
t
e
r
 
w


/
R


e
s
t
r
o


o
m


 


S
k
a
t
e
 
p


a
r
k


S
k
i
 
T


r
a
i
l


S
l
e
d


d
i
n


g
 
H


i
l
l


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
c
c
e
r


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
f
t
b


a
l
l


S
p


r
a
y
 
P


a
r
k


T
a
b


l
e
s


T
e
n


n
i
s


U
l
t
i
m


a
t
e
 
F
r
i
s
b


e
e


V
o


l
l
e
y
b


a
l
l


B.B. Clarke Beach Park 1 2 1 1 1 2


Badger Park 1 1 2


Beld Triangle Park


Berkley Park 3 1 1 1 1


Bernies Beach Park 1 1 2


Brentwood Park 1 1 1 1


Brigham Park 1 1 2


Britta Park 1


Camar Park


Churchill Heights Park 1 1 1 2


De Volis Park 1


Doncaster Park 1 1


Dudgeon School Park 1 1 3


Edward Klief Park 1 1 2 1


Eken Park 1 1 1 1 1


Elmside Circle Park 1 3


Esther Beach Park 1 1 1 1


Everglade Park 1 1 1 1 3


Filene Park


Fisher Street Park 1


Flad Park 1 1 1 1 2


Giddings Park 2


Glenwood Park 1 1


Greenside Park 1


Hammersley Park 1 1 1


Hampton Court Park


Hawthorne Park 1 1


Hiawatha Circle Park


Hillington Triangle Park 1 1 1 1


Hillpoint Park 1 1 2


Honeysuckle Park 1 1


Hudson Park 2


Hughes Park


Ice Age Ridge Park 1


Indian Hills Park 1 1 1


Kerr - Mcgee Triangle Park


Kestrel Park


Lake View Heights Park 1 1 1 1 1 3


Lakeland-Schiller Triangle Park


Lederberg Park  
continued on following page 


  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 32 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name Acres B
a
l
l
f
i
e
l
d


 
B


a
c
k
s
t
o


p


B
a
s
e
b


a
l
l


B
a
s
k
e
t
b


a
l
l


B
e
a
c
h


B
e
n


c
h


B
i
k
e
 
P


o
l
o


 
F
i
e
l
d


B
i
k
e
 
R


a
c
k


B
o


a
t
 
L


a
u


n
c
h


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
R


e
n


t
a
l


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
S


t
o


r
a
g


e


C
r
i
c
k
e
t


D
i
s
c
 
G


o
l
f


D
o


g
 
O


n
 
L


e
a
s
h


 
A


r
e
a


D
o


g
 
P


a
r
k


F
i
s
h


i
n


g


F
o


o
t
b


a
l
l


H
i
k
i
n


g


H
o


r
s
e
s
h


o
e
/
B


o
c
c
e


I
c
e
 
R


i
n


k


Lerdahl Park 2.28 1 1 2


Linden Grove Park 2.42 2 1


Lost Creek Park 1.25 1


Mandan Circle Park 0.22


Mayfair Park 2.45 1 1 2


McCormick Park 0.38


McFarland Park 0.17


Meadowood Park 3.07 1 1 5 1


Merrill Springs Park 0.70 1 3


Midland Park 0.44 1


Mohican Pass Triangle Park 0.85 1


Morrison Park 0.66 1 1


Nautilus Point Park 4.83


Newbery Park 2.13 1 2


Newville (Kenneth) Park 0.32 3


Norman Clayton Park 3.44 1 3


Oak Park Heights Park 1.13 1 1 1


Ocean Road Park 0.96 1


Odana Hills East Park 2.28 1 3 1


Old Middleton Road Park 0.52


Olive Jns Park (Randall Schl) 1.33 1 12


Ontario Park 2.09 1 1


Orchard Ridge Park 2.68 1 1 2


Orton Park 3.58 1 1 9 3


Owl's Creek Park 3.92


Peace (Elizabeth Link) Park 0.37


Pennsylvania Park 0.78


Portland Park 3.41 1 1 3


Proudfit Park 0.56


Quaker Park 0.77


Quarry Cove Park 7.72


Raemisch Homestead Park 4.05 1 1 3


Reger (George) Park 1.03 2


Reservoir Park 3.89 1 2


Reynolds Park 3.58 1 2 1


Rimrock Park 2.31 1 1 1


Segoe Park 1.92 1 1 1


Sheridan Triangle Park 0.15 1


Sherman Village Park 3.80 1 1 3


Sherwood Forest Park 1.41 1 1


Skyview Park 5.00


Slater (William) Park 1.03 2


Spring Harbor Beach Park 1.44 1 1  
continued on following page 


  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 33 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name L
a
c
r
o


s
s
e


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
a
t
h


l
e
t
i
c
)


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
o


t
h


e
r
)


O
p


e
n


 
P


l
a
y
 
F
i
e
l
d


P
a
r
k
i
n


g
 
L


o
t


P
l
a
y
g


r
o


u
n


d


P
o


o
l


R
e
s
t
r
o


o
m


S
c
e
n


i
c
 
O


v
e
r
l
o


o
k


S
u


n
 
S


h
e
l
t
e
r


S
h


e
l
t
e
r
 
w


/
R


e
s
t
r
o


o
m


 


S
k
a
t
e
 
p


a
r
k


S
k
i
 
T


r
a
i
l


S
l
e
d


d
i
n


g
 
H


i
l
l


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
c
c
e
r


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
f
t
b


a
l
l


S
p


r
a
y
 
P


a
r
k


T
a
b


l
e
s


T
e
n


n
i
s


U
l
t
i
m


a
t
e
 
F
r
i
s
b


e
e


V
o


l
l
e
y
b


a
l
l


Lerdahl Park 1 1 1


Linden Grove Park


Lost Creek Park 1 1


Mandan Circle Park


Mayfair Park 1 1 1 1 1


McCormick Park


McFarland Park


Meadowood Park 1 1 1 1 2


Merrill Springs Park 1 1 3


Midland Park 1 1 1


Mohican Pass Triangle Park 1


Morrison Park 1 1


Nautilus Point Park 1 1 1


Newbery Park 1 1 2


Newville (Kenneth) Park 1


Norman Clayton Park 1 1 1 1 2 2


Oak Park Heights Park 1 1 1 1 2


Ocean Road Park 1 1


Odana Hills East Park 1 1 3


Old Middleton Road Park


Olive Jns Park (Randall Schl) 1 2 2


Ontario Park 3 1 1 2


Orchard Ridge Park 2 1 1 1


Orton Park 1 1 2 1 5


Owl's Creek Park 1


Peace (Elizabeth Link) Park 9 1 3


Pennsylvania Park


Portland Park 1 1 1 1 3


Proudfit Park


Quaker Park 1 1 1


Quarry Cove Park 1


Raemisch Homestead Park 1 1 1


Reger (George) Park 1 1 1


Reservoir Park 1 1 2


Reynolds Park 1 1 1 2 2


Rimrock Park 1 1 1


Segoe Park 1 1 1 1 2


Sheridan Triangle Park 1 1


Sherman Village Park 1 1 1 1


Sherwood Forest Park 1 1 1


Skyview Park 1 1


Slater (William) Park 1 1 1 1


Spring Harbor Beach Park 1 3  
continued on following page 


  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 34 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name Acres B
a
l
l
f
i
e
l
d


 
B


a
c
k
s
t
o


p


B
a
s
e
b


a
l
l


B
a
s
k
e
t
b


a
l
l


B
e
a
c
h


B
e
n


c
h


B
i
k
e
 
P


o
l
o


 
F
i
e
l
d


B
i
k
e
 
R


a
c
k


B
o


a
t
 
L


a
u


n
c
h


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
R


e
n


t
a
l


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
S


t
o


r
a
g


e


C
r
i
c
k
e
t


D
i
s
c
 
G


o
l
f


D
o


g
 
O


n
 
L


e
a
s
h


 
A


r
e
a


D
o


g
 
P


a
r
k


F
i
s
h


i
n


g


F
o


o
t
b


a
l
l


H
i
k
i
n


g


H
o


r
s
e
s
h


o
e
/
B


o
c
c
e


I
c
e
 
R


i
n


k


Stevens Street Park 0.42 1 3 1


Sugar Maple Park 2.28


Sunridge Park 2.36 1 3


Sunset Park 1.50 1 3


Swallowtail Park 3.51 1 1


Town Center Park 2.46


Village Park 3.22 1


Waldorf Park 1.79


Washington Manor Park 2.47 1


Western Hills Park 0.47


Westport Meadows Park 1.68 1 1


Wheeler Heights Park 1.62 1 1 2


Windom Way Park 2.84 1 1 2


Wirth Court Park 1.85 1 1 7


Zook Park 1.63 1 2


Subtotal, Mini Parks 194.51 26 0 42 5 155 1 10 2 0 7 0 0 0 0 6 0 1 0 2


Acer Park 6.72


Acewood Park 4.26 1 1 3


Aldo Leopold Park 11.09 1 1 4


Arbor Hills Park 7.90 1 4


Baxter Park 9.84 1 4 1


Bordner Park 6.47 1 1 3


Burr Jones Park 4.68 2 1 1


Burrows Park 10.56 1 6 3 1


Cardinal Glenn Park 8.92 1 2


Carpenter - Ridgeway Park 3.95 1 9


Cherokee Park 18.00 1 1 5 1 3 1


Dominion Park 6.03 1 2


Droster Park 10.01 1 1 2


Eastmorland Park 13.81 1 1 4


Elvehjem Park 5.39 1 4


Felland Park 13.52


Flagstone Park 14.02 1 1 1


Glacier Hill Park 15.50 1 2


Glen Oak Hills Park 7.72 1 1


Greentree - Chapel Hills Park 38.97 1 1


Haen Family Park 4.29 1 1 2


Heritage Heights Park 8.11 2 1 4 1


High Crossing Park 5.74 1 1


High Point Park 19.47 2 1 2


Highland Manor Park 4.66 1 1 1


Hill Creek Park 10.68 1 1 3


Huegel Park 12.98 1 1  
continued on following page 


  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 35 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name L
a
c
r
o


s
s
e


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
a
t
h


l
e
t
i
c
)


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
o


t
h


e
r
)


O
p


e
n


 
P


l
a
y
 
F
i
e
l
d


P
a
r
k
i
n


g
 
L


o
t


P
l
a
y
g


r
o


u
n


d


P
o


o
l


R
e
s
t
r
o


o
m


S
c
e
n


i
c
 
O


v
e
r
l
o


o
k


S
u


n
 
S


h
e
l
t
e
r


S
h


e
l
t
e
r
 
w


/
R


e
s
t
r
o


o
m


 


S
k
a
t
e
 
p


a
r
k


S
k
i
 
T


r
a
i
l


S
l
e
d


d
i
n


g
 
H


i
l
l


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
c
c
e
r


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
f
t
b


a
l
l


S
p


r
a
y
 
P


a
r
k


T
a
b


l
e
s


T
e
n


n
i
s


U
l
t
i
m


a
t
e
 
F
r
i
s
b


e
e


V
o


l
l
e
y
b


a
l
l


Stevens Street Park 2 3 1


Sugar Maple Park


Sunridge Park 1 1


Sunset Park 1 1


Swallowtail Park 1 1 1 2


Town Center Park


Village Park 1 1 2


Waldorf Park


Washington Manor Park 3 1 1 1


Western Hills Park 1 1


Westport Meadows Park 1 1


Wheeler Heights Park 1 1 1 1


Windom Way Park 1 1 2


Wirth Court Park 1 1 1 2


Zook Park 1


Subtotal, Mini Parks 0 1 37 50 2 68 0 6 1 13 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 104 7 0 4


Acer Park


Acewood Park 1 1 1 2


Aldo Leopold Park 8 1 1 4


Arbor Hills Park 1 1 1 1 1 1 2


Baxter Park 1 1 1 1 3


Bordner Park 1 1 1 2 2


Burr Jones Park 4 1 1 1


Burrows Park 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 18


Cardinal Glenn Park 1 1 1 3


Carpenter - Ridgeway Park 4 1 1 1


Cherokee Park 1 1 1 1 4


Dominion Park 1 1 3


Droster Park 1 1 1 1


Eastmorland Park 2 1 2 1 2


Elvehjem Park 3 2 1 1 1 1 13 2


Felland Park


Flagstone Park 13 1 1 1 1


Glacier Hill Park 1 1 2 2


Glen Oak Hills Park 1 1


Greentree - Chapel Hills Park 1 1 1 2


Haen Family Park 1 1 1 1 3 1


Heritage Heights Park 1 1 1 1 6 2


High Crossing Park 1 1 1


High Point Park 1 1 1 3 2


Highland Manor Park 1


Hill Creek Park 1 1 2


Huegel Park 1 1 1 1 1 2  
continued on following page 


  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 36 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name Acres B
a
l
l
f
i
e
l
d


 
B


a
c
k
s
t
o


p


B
a
s
e
b


a
l
l


B
a
s
k
e
t
b


a
l
l


B
e
a
c
h


B
e
n


c
h


B
i
k
e
 
P


o
l
o


 
F
i
e
l
d


B
i
k
e
 
R


a
c
k


B
o


a
t
 
L


a
u


n
c
h


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
R


e
n


t
a
l


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
S


t
o


r
a
g


e


C
r
i
c
k
e
t


D
i
s
c
 
G


o
l
f


D
o


g
 
O


n
 
L


e
a
s
h


 
A


r
e
a


D
o


g
 
P


a
r
k


F
i
s
h


i
n


g


F
o


o
t
b


a
l
l


H
i
k
i
n


g


H
o


r
s
e
s
h


o
e
/
B


o
c
c
e


I
c
e
 
R


i
n


k


Junction Ridge Park 14.33 1 2


Kingston - Onyx Park 4.73 1 1 2


Kingswood Park 4.69 1 2


Lake Edge Park 5.00 1 1 2


Lucia Crest Park 4.14 1 1 4 1


Lucy Lincoln Hiestand Park 12.44 1 1 2


Manchester Park 14.44 1 1


Maple Prairie Park 12.59 1 1 3


Marlborough Park 20.41 3 1 6 1 2


McClellan Park 4.51 1 2


McGinnis Park 4.07 1


Meadow Ridge Park 18.13 1 1


Midtown Commons Park 10.30


Monona Park 8.64


Nakoma Park 5.21 1 11 1


North Star Park 23.60 1 4


Northland Manor Park 10.30 1 1 1


Odana Hills Park 12.79 1 3


Odana School Park 5.98 1 1


Orchard Ridge Valley Park 9.50


Orlando Bell Park 13.10 1 1 6 2


Patriot Park 5.41


Paunack (A.O.) Park 5.43 1 3 1 1


Penn Park 7.16 1 3 5 1


Pilgrim Park 18.91 1 1 2 1


Raymond Ridge Park 17.28 1 1 2


Rennebohm Park 20.12 1 1 4 3


Reston Heights Park 4.53 1


Richmond Hill Park 10.25 1 1 3


Rustic Park 8.83 1 2


Sandburg Park 14.74 1 1


Sandstone Park 6.54 1


Sauk Creek Park 4.21 1 1 2


Sauk Heights Park 4.60 1


Secret Places Park 6.73 1 1


Sherry (O.B.) Park 7.97 1


Spring Harbor Park 8.21 1 6 1 1 3 1 1


Thut Park 7.19 1 3 1


Valley Ridge Park 6.86 1


Veterans Memorial Park 5.34 1 5


Walnut Grove Park 20.25 2 1 3 1


Waltham Park 5.77 1 1 3


Waunona Park 5.13 1 1 3  
continued on following page 


  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 37 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name L
a
c
r
o


s
s
e


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
a
t
h


l
e
t
i
c
)


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
o


t
h


e
r
)


O
p


e
n


 
P


l
a
y
 
F
i
e
l
d


P
a
r
k
i
n


g
 
L


o
t


P
l
a
y
g


r
o


u
n


d


P
o


o
l


R
e
s
t
r
o


o
m


S
c
e
n


i
c
 
O


v
e
r
l
o


o
k


S
u


n
 
S


h
e
l
t
e
r


S
h


e
l
t
e
r
 
w


/
R


e
s
t
r
o


o
m


 


S
k
a
t
e
 
p


a
r
k


S
k
i
 
T


r
a
i
l


S
l
e
d


d
i
n


g
 
H


i
l
l


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
c
c
e
r


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
f
t
b


a
l
l


S
p


r
a
y
 
P


a
r
k


T
a
b


l
e
s


T
e
n


n
i
s


U
l
t
i
m


a
t
e
 
F
r
i
s
b


e
e


V
o


l
l
e
y
b


a
l
l


Junction Ridge Park 1 1 1 1 2


Kingston - Onyx Park 1 1 2 1


Kingswood Park 1 1 1 2


Lake Edge Park 1 1 1 3


Lucia Crest Park 1 1 1 1 1 2 1


Lucy Lincoln Hiestand Park 1 1 1 3


Manchester Park 1 1 1 1 3 1 1


Maple Prairie Park 1 1 2


Marlborough Park 1 1 1 1 1 2 9 1


McClellan Park 1 1 1


McGinnis Park 1 1


Meadow Ridge Park 1 1 1


Midtown Commons Park 1 2 2 1


Monona Park 1 1 1


Nakoma Park 1 4 1


North Star Park 1 1 3 2


Northland Manor Park 2 1 1 1 7 2


Odana Hills Park 1 1 2 2


Odana School Park 1 1 1 3


Orchard Ridge Valley Park 1 1


Orlando Bell Park 1 1 1 1 4 1


Patriot Park


Paunack (A.O.) Park 1 1 3


Penn Park 1 1 1 1 1 1 8 1


Pilgrim Park 1 1 1 2 N


Raymond Ridge Park 1 1 1 1 2


Rennebohm Park 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 33 6


Reston Heights Park 1 1 2


Richmond Hill Park 1 1 1 1 6 2


Rustic Park 1 1


Sandburg Park 2 1 1 1


Sandstone Park 1 1 2


Sauk Creek Park 1 1 1 3


Sauk Heights Park 1 1 1 1


Secret Places Park 1 1 2


Sherry (O.B.) Park 2 1 1 1 2


Spring Harbor Park 1 1 1 1


Thut Park 5 1 1 1 4


Valley Ridge Park 1 1 1 3


Veterans Memorial Park 1 1 1 1


Walnut Grove Park 1 1 1 1 2 6 2


Waltham Park 1 1 1 2 1


Waunona Park 1 1 1 1 5 2  
continued on following page 


  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 38 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name Acres B
a
l
l
f
i
e
l
d


 
B


a
c
k
s
t
o


p


B
a
s
e
b


a
l
l


B
a
s
k
e
t
b


a
l
l


B
e
a
c
h


B
e
n


c
h


B
i
k
e
 
P


o
l
o


 
F
i
e
l
d


B
i
k
e
 
R


a
c
k


B
o


a
t
 
L


a
u


n
c
h


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
R


e
n


t
a
l


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
S


t
o


r
a
g


e


C
r
i
c
k
e
t


D
i
s
c
 
G


o
l
f


D
o


g
 
O


n
 
L


e
a
s
h


 
A


r
e
a


D
o


g
 
P


a
r
k


F
i
s
h


i
n


g


F
o


o
t
b


a
l
l


H
i
k
i
n


g


H
o


r
s
e
s
h


o
e
/
B


o
c
c
e


I
c
e
 
R


i
n


k


Westchester Gardens Park 7.08 1 1 2


Westhaven Trails Park 5.55 1 1 4


Westmorland Park 11.69 1 1 9 1 1


Wexford Park 20.60 2 1 8 1


Whitetail Ridge Park 9.55 1 1 1


Wingra Park and Boat Livery 11.76 1 1 14 2 2 1 2 1


Woodland Hills Park 15.13 1 1


Worthington Park 5.09 1 2 5


Yahara Place Park 6.08 1 7 1 1


Subtotal, Neighborhood Parks 796.18 49 0 69 0 218 0 12 4 1 12 0 0 5 2 6 2 1 5 5


Blackhawk Park 28.71 1


Brittingham Park 25.81 2 1 11 2 13 1 1 1


Central Park 5.80 16 5


Country Grove Park 31.49 1 1 1


Demetral Park 49.18 1 1 1 1


Door Creek Park 159.97 2 4


Elver Park 250.82 3 7 2 1 1 1 1


Garner Park 41.83 1 1 3 1


Goodman Park 29.11 2 9 1 1


Hiestand Park 46.27 2 1 9 4 1


Hoyt Park 22.63 1 1 9 1 1


James Madison Park 12.63 2 1 14 1 7 1


Kennedy Park 22.72 2 1 4


Law Park 4.66 2 3 1 1


Marshall Park 37.07 1 5 2 19 1


North-East Park 237.76 1


Olbrich Park 66.85 5 1 23 1 2 3 1 2


Olin Park 47.12 1 1 8 3 2 1


Quann Park 55.43 14 1


Reindahl (Amund) Park 90.74 1 1 9 1 1


Sycamore Park 71.42 2 2 2 1


Tenney Park 37.07 1 2 1 24 2 2 12 1 1


Vilas (Henry) Park 45.67 2 1 1 10 5 1 1 1 2 2


Warner Park 213.49 1 2 1 36 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1


Yahara Hills Park (South) 43.59


Yahara Hills Park (West) 82.20


Subtotal, Community Parks 1,760.04 19 1 27 8 220 0 29 13 1 54 1 2 6 5 9 4 3 0 9


Breese Stevens Athletic Field 4.53 4


Duane F. Bowman Park 23.36 4 1


Subtotal, Sports Complexes 27.89 4 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
continued on following page 


 
  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 39 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name L
a
c
r
o


s
s
e


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
a
t
h


l
e
t
i
c
)


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
o


t
h


e
r
)


O
p


e
n


 
P


l
a
y
 
F
i
e
l
d


P
a
r
k
i
n


g
 
L


o
t


P
l
a
y
g


r
o


u
n


d


P
o


o
l


R
e
s
t
r
o


o
m


S
c
e
n


i
c
 
O


v
e
r
l
o


o
k


S
u


n
 
S


h
e
l
t
e
r


S
h


e
l
t
e
r
 
w


/
R


e
s
t
r
o


o
m


 


S
k
a
t
e
 
p


a
r
k


S
k
i
 
T


r
a
i
l


S
l
e
d


d
i
n


g
 
H


i
l
l


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
c
c
e
r


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
f
t
b


a
l
l


S
p


r
a
y
 
P


a
r
k


T
a
b


l
e
s


T
e
n


n
i
s


U
l
t
i
m


a
t
e
 
F
r
i
s
b


e
e


V
o


l
l
e
y
b


a
l
l


Westchester Gardens Park 1 1 1


Westhaven Trails Park 1 1 1 1 4 2 1


Westmorland Park 5 1 1 1 1 1 14 2 1


Wexford Park 1 2 1 1 1 2 8 2 1


Whitetail Ridge Park 1 1 1 2


Wingra Park and Boat Livery 1 1 1 1 1 12


Woodland Hills Park 1 1 1 1


Worthington Park 13 1 1 1 2


Yahara Place Park 1 1 3 1


Subtotal, Neighborhood Parks 2 18 76 70 5 74 0 8 3 25 4 0 0 1 44 0 0 267 30 4 8


Blackhawk Park 1 1 1 3 2


Brittingham Park 10 1 1 3 1 1 45 4 1 2


Central Park 5 26 1 1 5


Country Grove Park 1 1 1 3 4


Demetral Park 22 17 1 1 1 1 4 23 1 2


Door Creek Park 1 1 2 3 4


Elver Park 17 1 1 1 1 1 3 1 1 4 4 1 34 3


Garner Park 1 5 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 3 25 2 1


Goodman Park 10 20 1 1 1 1 1 2 9 1


Hiestand Park 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 17


Hoyt Park 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 29


James Madison Park 18 1 1 2 1 1 8 1


Kennedy Park 1 1 1 2 10 2 1


Law Park 1 2


Marshall Park 11 1 2 1 1 1 1 21 1


North-East Park 1 1 2


Olbrich Park 29 28 1 5 3 1 1 1 3 5 40 2 1 4


Olin Park 33 1 3 1 1 1 1 1 19


Quann Park 1 1 1 1 1 10 12


Reindahl (Amund) Park 1 1 4 1 1 1 1 9 1 26 8


Sycamore Park 7 1 1 3 1 2 12


Tenney Park 12 8 1 3 2 1 1 2 20 3 1


Vilas (Henry) Park 11 1 4 2 1 1 1 68 6


Warner Park 31 33 1 7 1 1 2 1 1 5 5 72 3 1 2


Yahara Hills Park (South) 3


Yahara Hills Park (West)


Subtotal, Community Parks 1 125 239 21 37 30 1 15 8 9 15 1 1 5 43 20 2 506 49 4 16


Breese Stevens Athletic Field 1 1 6


Duane F. Bowman Park 19 3 1 1 3 2


Subtotal, Sports Complexes 0 19 3 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 8 0 0 0  
continued on following page 


  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 40 June 28, 2016 


 
Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name Acres B
a
l
l
f
i
e
l
d


 
B


a
c
k
s
t
o


p


B
a
s
e
b


a
l
l


B
a
s
k
e
t
b


a
l
l


B
e
a
c
h


B
e
n


c
h


B
i
k
e
 
P


o
l
o


 
F
i
e
l
d


B
i
k
e
 
R


a
c
k


B
o


a
t
 
L


a
u


n
c
h


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
R


e
n


t
a
l


C
a
n


o
e
/
K


a
y
a
k
 
S


t
o


r
a
g


e


C
r
i
c
k
e
t


D
i
s
c
 
G


o
l
f


D
o


g
 
O


n
 
L


e
a
s
h


 
A


r
e
a


D
o


g
 
P


a
r
k


F
i
s
h


i
n


g


F
o


o
t
b


a
l
l


H
i
k
i
n


g


H
o


r
s
e
s
h


o
e
/
B


o
c
c
e


I
c
e
 
R


i
n


k


Bear Mound Park 1.60


Cypress Spray Park 0.66 1


Yahara Boat & Storage Ramp 0.87


Subtotal, Special Parks 3.13 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Baldwin Street End 0.12 1


Blount St S Street End 0.10 3 1


Brearly St S Street End 0.12 2 1


Capital Avenue Street End 0.20


Dickinson Street S Street End 0.09 1 1


Edgewood Pleasure Drive 2.43


Few Street S Street End 0.10 1 1


Ingersoll Street S Street End 0.12 2 1


Livingston Street N Street End 0.13


Livingston Street S Street End 0.12


Monona Bay Open Spaces 0.66


Paterson Street N Street End 0.08


Pinckney N Street End 0.21


Subtotal, Trafficways 4.48 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0


Total, Active Parks 2,786.23 98 2 138 13 607 1 52 19 2 73 1 2 11 7 26 6 5 5 16  
continued on following page 


  







Appendix A:  Existing Park Inventory 


 


 


City of Madison, Wisconsin  


Park Impact Fee Policy Evaluation 41 June 28, 2016 


 


Table 27.  Existing Active Park Inventory (continued) 


Park Name L
a
c
r
o


s
s
e


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
a
t
h


l
e
t
i
c
)


L
i
g


h
t
 
P


o
l
e
 
(
o


t
h


e
r
)


O
p


e
n


 
P


l
a
y
 
F
i
e
l
d


P
a
r
k
i
n


g
 
L


o
t


P
l
a
y
g


r
o


u
n


d


P
o


o
l


R
e
s
t
r
o


o
m


S
c
e
n


i
c
 
O


v
e
r
l
o


o
k


S
u


n
 
S


h
e
l
t
e
r


S
h


e
l
t
e
r
 
w


/
R


e
s
t
r
o


o
m


 


S
k
a
t
e
 
p


a
r
k


S
k
i
 
T


r
a
i
l


S
l
e
d


d
i
n


g
 
H


i
l
l


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
c
c
e
r


R
e
s
e
r
v
a
b


l
e
 
S


o
f
t
b


a
l
l


S
p


r
a
y
 
P


a
r
k


T
a
b


l
e
s


T
e
n


n
i
s


U
l
t
i
m


a
t
e
 
F
r
i
s
b


e
e


V
o


l
l
e
y
b


a
l
l


Bear Mound Park


Cypress Spray Park 1 1 1 1 3


Yahara Boat & Storage Ramp


Subtotal, Special Parks 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 0


Baldwin Street End


Blount St S Street End 1 1


Brearly St S Street End


Capital Avenue Street End


Dickinson Street S Street End


Edgewood Pleasure Drive


Few Street S Street End


Ingersoll Street S Street End


Livingston Street N Street End 1


Livingston Street S Street End


Monona Bay Open Spaces


Paterson Street N Street End


Pinckney N Street End


Subtotal, Trafficways 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0


Total, Active Parks 3 163 358 141 45 173 1 31 12 48 19 1 1 7 91 23 3 889 86 8 28  
Source:  City of Madison Parks Division, December 15, 2015. 


 
 
 


 
 
 





		Nordic Ridge Development Budget.pdf

		Impact Fee Item.pdf

		2017 Dane County Park Impact Fees.pdf

		2019 Park Impact Fees.pdf

		City of Madison -  Draft Public Facility Needs Assessment.pdf








REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS


Professional Services to the City of Stoughton Parks and


Recreation Department


For


Prefabricated Concrete Restroom Facility for


Rotary Park







Contents
Section 1 – General Information.............................................................................................................. 3


1.1 Purpose.................................................................................................................................... 3


1.2 General Submission Information .............................................................................................. 3


1.3 Site Visits & Pre-Submittal Meeting................................................................................................ 3


1.4 Questions................................................................................................................................. 3


1.5 Preparation Costs..................................................................................................................... 3


Section 2 – Anticipated Process ............................................................................................................... 3


2.1 Examination of Proposals............................................................................................................... 3


2.2 Proposal Acceptance Period........................................................................................................... 4


2.3 Confidentiality ............................................................................................................................... 4


2.4 Proposal Format ............................................................................................................................ 4


2.5 Signature Requirements................................................................................................................. 4


2.6 Proposal Submission ...................................................................................................................... 4


2.7 News Releases ............................................................................................................................... 4


2.8 Disposition of Proposals................................................................................................................. 5


2.9 Modification/Withdrawal of Proposals........................................................................................... 5


2.10 Oral Change/Interpretation.......................................................................................................... 5


2.11 Late Submissions ......................................................................................................................... 5


2.12 Rejection of Proposals.................................................................................................................. 5


Section 3 – Scope of Work ....................................................................................................................... 5


Section 4 – Proposal and Submission Requirements ................................................................................ 6


4.1 Proposal Narrative ......................................................................................................................... 6


Section 5 – Evaluation Criteria and Selection Process............................................................................... 8


Section 6 – Contract Negotiation Process ................................................................................................ 8







Section 1 – General Information


1.1 Purpose
The City of Stoughton Parks and Recreation (SPR) Department is requesting proposals from qualified


vendors for prefabricated concrete restrooms and installation. The restroom facility will be installed at


Rotary Park, located at 316 S. Sixth Street, Stoughton, WI 53589.


1.2 General Submission Information
The SPR Department intends to award a single contract for this project. The proposal should provide the


Vendor’s proposed design for the restroom facility and address the vendor’s capabilities including the


installation of the restroom. The official title for this project is: Prefabricated Concrete Restroom Facility


for Rotary Park.


1.3 Site Visits & Pre-Submittal Meeting
Vendors may visit the site during regular park hours, 7:00 AM to 10:00 PM, to take measurements, view


the site, take pictures, etc. SPR will be allowing pre-submittal meetings for any vendors wanting one.


Please contact Dan Glynn, Parks & Recreation Director, to schedule a pre-submittal meeting. The cut-off


for pre-submittal meetings is March 22, 2019.


1.4 Questions
Questions regarding the proposal shall be submitted to:


Dan Glynn, Parks & Recreation Director


Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department


381 E. Main Street


Stoughton, WI 53589


Phone: (608) 873-6746


Fax: (608) 873-5519


dglynn@ci.stoughton.wi.us


1.5 Preparation Costs
Proposers shall be solely responsible for proposal preparation costs, including but not limited to the cost


of preparing the proposed park design. By submitting a proposal each Proposer agrees to be bound in


this respect and waives all claims to such costs and fees.


Section 2 – Anticipated Process


2.1 Examination of Proposals
Proposers should carefully examine the entire RFP, and addenda thereto, and all related materials and


data referenced in the RFP. Proposers should become fully aware of the nature of the work and the


conditions likely to be encountered in performing the work.







2.2 Proposal Acceptance Period
Award of this proposal is anticipated to be announced within forty-five (45) calendar days after the


submission date, although all proposals must be irrevocable for ninety (90) days following the


submission date.


2.3 Confidentiality
The content of all proposals and scoring sheets will be kept confidential along with the successful


proposer until after the award of the contract, at which time the information will become public


information.


2.4 Proposal Format
Proposals are to be prepared in such a way as to provide straightforward, concise delineation of the


Proposer’s capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this RFP. Emphasis should be placed on:


 Conformance to the RFP instructions


 Responsiveness to the RFP requirements


 Overall completeness and clarity of content


2.5 Signature Requirements
All proposals must be signed. An officer or other agent of a corporate vendor, if authorized to sign


contracts on its behalf; a member of a partnership; the owner of a privately owned vendor; or other


agent if properly authorized by a Power of Attorney or equivalent document may sign a proposal. The


name and title of the individual(s) signing the proposal must be clearly shown immediately below the


signature.


2.6 Proposal Submission
One (1) paper copy and one (1) digital PDF copy on a USB drive of the proposal must be received by the


City of Stoughton Parks and Recreation Department prior to 2:00 PM on Friday, April 5, 2019. All copes


of the proposals must be sealed cover and plainly marked with the project name. Proposals shall be


delivered or mailed to:


City of Stoughton


Parks and Recreation Department


Attention: Dan Glynn, Parks & Recreation Director


381 E. Main Street


Stoughton, WI 53589


2.7 News Releases
News releases pertaining to the award resulting from the RFPs shall not be made without prior written


approval of the SPR Department.







2.8 Disposition of Proposals
All materials submitted in response to this RFP become the property of the City of Stoughton. One copy


shall be retained for the official files of the Parks and Recreation Department and will become public


record after award of the contract.


2.9 Modification/Withdrawal of Proposals
A respondent may withdraw a proposal at any time prior to the final submission date by sending written


notification of its withdrawal, signed by an agent authorized to represent the agency. The respondent


may thereafter submit a new or modified proposal prior to the final submission date. Modifications


offered in any other manner, oral or written, will not be considered. A final proposal cannot be changed


or withdrawn after the time designated for receipt, except for modifications requested by the City after


the date of receipt and following oral presentations.


2.10 Oral Change/Interpretation
No oral change or interpretation of any provision contained in this RFP is valid whether issues at a pre-


proposal conference or otherwise. Written addenda will be issues when the City deems changes,


clarifications, or amendments to proposal documents necessary.


2.11 Late Submissions
Proposals not received prior to the date and time specified will not be considered and will be returned


unopened after recommendation of award.


2.12 Rejection of Proposals
The City of Stoughton reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, to waive irregularities and to


accept that proposal which the city determines, in its sole discretion, is in the best interest of the City.


Section 3 – Scope of Work
The City of Stoughton is seeking prefabricated concrete restrooms facilities and installation at Rotary


Park. Rotary Park is located at 316 S. Sixth Street, Stoughton, WI 53589. The restroom facility will be


located on the northeast area of the park. Please see Exhibit A for site map. The facility should be one


building including a mechanical chase room, with a minimum of two single user restrooms. Each toilet


facility should include commercial grade fixtures, toilet, sink, hand sanitizer dispensers, mirror, toilet


paper dispenser, lights, vents, electric hand dryers, and Americans with Disabilities Act compliant grab


bars. The facility should not be larger than a 20’ X 15’ floor plan.


- Each single user restroom shall include commercial grade fixtures. The fixtures include:


o Toilet


o Sink


o Mirror


o Toilet Paper Dispenser


o Lights


o Vents


o Electric Hand Dryers


o ADA Compliant Grab Bars







- The facility doors shall be 18 gauge galvanized steel doors. The door frames shall be 14 gauge


galvanized steel and hollow. The locks for the doors shall be ____________. The doors and


frames shall be painted to match the fire station doors. The paint is 57162 Neutral Base, Valspar,


and the paint code is:


B 3 318


I 7 150


KX 152


MM 152


- The facility’s facade shall feature an all brick exterior. The brick should match the nearby fire


station. See Exhibit B for a picture of the fire station.


- The facility shall include a metal roof. The metal roof should match the nearby fire station. See


Exhibit B for a picture of the fire station. The roof shall have a minimum of a 1’’ eave overhang.


- The facility should have interior and exterior security lighting. Lighting should include options for


motion lighting and dusk to dawn lights.


- The facility should be pre-plumbed and pre-wired with no exposed wiring.


- The facility shall meet all Americans with Disabilities Act requirements.


- The facility shall meet or exceed all local and state permitting requirements. The successful


proposer shall provide fully stamped/sealed and approved construction plans, in full compliance


with all state and local permitting before the City will approve and/or accept delivery.


- The facility will be installed at the location designated by the City, at Rotary Park Stoughton, WI.


Please see Exhibit A for site map.


- The City shall be responsible for having the associated site and utility stub work ready for the


building delivery. Regardless of who performs the installation, the City will consider options for


both final utility and building-to-site connections; therefore, proposers are to be prepared to


provide experience relative to handling these final connections in order for the City to receive a


Certificate of Occupancy so that the restroom is fully ready for public usage.


- The facility must be warrantied. The City requests proposals including warranty of the concrete


elements (up to and including twenty (20) years) and all non-concrete components (a minimum


one-year warranty). If warranty differs based on the responsibility of installation, the Proposer


should clearly identify the difference in warranties in its proposal.


Section 4 – Proposal and Submission Requirements
To achieve a uniform review process and obtain the maximum degree of comparability, the proposals


shall be organized in the manner specified below. The typeface shall be of 12 font or greater.


4.1 Proposal Narrative
All proposal information shall be presented in a single bound volume that has been checked sufficiently


to ensure completeness and accuracy of detail. Proposals that do not comply with the instructions in


this RFP will not be accepted. It is mandatory that the proposal contains the following five (5) items and


that it be presented in the following order:


1. Cover


2. Title Page


3. Letter of Transmittal


4. Table of Contents







5. Core Content


a. Design Proposal


b. Past Project Performance


c. Cost Proposal


d. Capability to Meet Deadlines


6. Supporting Attachments


Items 5 and 6 should be separated with either color-coded or tab-type dividers so the information


may be quickly located.


A. Title Page


Show the RFP title being proposed on, the name of your firm, address, telephone number(s), name


of contact person, and date.


B. Letter of Transmittal


a. Identify the RFP project for which the proposal has been prepared.


b. Briefly state your firm’s understanding of the services to be performed and make a


positive commitment to provide the services as specified.


c. Provide the name(s) of the person(s) authorized to make representations for your firm,


their titles, address, and telephone numbers.


d. A corporate officer or other individual who has the authority to bind the firm must sign


the letter. The name and title of the individual(s) signing the proposal must be clearly


shown immediately below the signature.


C. Table of Contents


D. Details of Core Content


a. Recent Experience in Constructing and Installing Prefabricated Concrete Restroom


Facilities


Include as a part of your proposal a brief statement concerning the recent relevant


experience of the persons from your firm and each sub-consultant who will be actively


engaged in the proposed effort. Please include details about designing, constructing,


and installing prefabricated restroom facilities. Do not include firm experience unless


individuals who will work on this project participated in that experience.


b. Past Project Performance


Information is to be provided on the firm’s performance on past projects (include public


projects if applicable), in regards to the project management items identified.


Provide the names, addresses, current telephone numbers, and a brief project


description of three past or current clients who are able to comment on aspects of your


work relevant to this proposal.


c. Cost Proposal


Please provide a detailed cost proposal. If the proposer has multiple restroom


configurations that would fit within the specified building site, please provide a separate


cost proposal sheet for each restroom. The proposal should specify proposed costs for:







- Standard Restroom Facility


- Installation Costs


- Full Brick Exterior Facade


- Metal Roof


- Fixture Options


- Miscellaneous (please describe)


d. Capability to Meet Deadlines


Provide projected workload and timeline to complete the project by May 24, 2019.


e. Warranty


Please describe all warranties that will be provided for the equipment and installations,


including any conditions and response time for repair and/or replacement of any


components during the warranty period. Please also indicate the life expectancy under


normal use, considering it will be subject to Wisconsin weather.


E. Supporting Attachments


Attach only information pertinent to the project being proposed on and that will provide reviewers


clear and concise insights into your firm’s capabilities.


Section 5 – Evaluation Criteria and Selection Process
A committee of individuals representing the City of Stoughton will evaluate the proposals.


The City of Stoughton reserves the right to award contract(s) based solely on the written proposals. The


City also reserves the right to request oral interviews. The City reserves the right to request additional


questions to be answered during the interviews, to determine which proposers will be interviewed, to


determine the format and content of the interviews, and to establish the maximum number of people


who may attend the interview from a proposer. The consultant’s project manager identified in the


proposal will be required to attend a requested interviews. By submitting a proposal, it is understood


that the proposers may not change (add or delete) personnel for interviews from those listed in the


proposals without written consent from the City.


Section 6 – Contract Negotiation Process
The City may invite such one or more proposers to enter into Contract negotiations with the City. The


City reserves the right to terminate negotiations with any proposer. The City reserves the right to reject


any and all proposals submitted.


The successful firm shall meet with the City of Stoughton minimum commercial general liability


insurance requirements of $1 million per claim and occurrence, shall provide a certificate of insurance


demonstrating that the required policy of insurance is in effect, and shall provide an endorsement to the


policy stating that the City of Stoughton is named as an additional insured party under the policy.







Rotary Park Park Improvements Budget


Restrooms


Item Supplier Cost


Prefab Restroom Crest $46,000.00


Restroom Upgrades (Metal Roof, Brick Exterior) Crest $6,900.00


Excavation for restroom and sidewalk Haugen $5,395.00


Electric Locks Laforce $3,368.00


Sanitary and Water Hookup Haugen $5,840.00


Electric Hookup


Concrete Pathways Haugen $5,960.00


Relocating Trash Enclosure


Building Permits $605.00


Restoration


Total $74,068.00


Budget is $75,000







Rotary Park Improvements


Restroom


Actual Property


Line


New Enclosure







1


Dan Glynn


From: Theisen, Blake <TheisenB@AyresAssociates.com>


Sent: Thursday, February 14, 2019 11:55 AM


To: Dan Glynn


Subject: RE: Rotary Park Improvements


Sorry- meant to include this. survey limits


Blake Theisen, PLA, ASLA
Landscape Architect


Direct: 608.441.3569 • Mobile: 608.886.6808
TheisenB@AyresAssociates.com
www.AyresAssociates.com


From: Theisen, Blake
Sent: Thursday, February 14, 2019 11:45 AM
To: 'DGlynn@ci.stoughton.wi.us' <DGlynn@ci.stoughton.wi.us>
Subject: RE: Rotary Park Improvements


Hi Dan- I got a price back form our surveyor this am.


Topo for the area would be $2,600
Design of the sidewalk and retaining wall (4’ max) would be $5,060. This is assuming that construction will be done
either by your crew, or added to another project. if we need to do bid docs (specs and contracts) it would add
another $1,000.


Let me know if you want a formal proposal. Thanks!


Blake Theisen, PLA, ASLA
Landscape Architect


Direct: 608.441.3569 • Mobile: 608.886.6808
TheisenB@AyresAssociates.com
www.AyresAssociates.com





		Restroom RFP.pdf

		Park Improvement Budget.pdf

		Park Improvement Site Plan.pdf

		Rotary Park - Ayres.pdf






Director’s Report
February 2019


Nordic Ridge Playground


- Compiled detailed budget numbers to help complete RFP


o Excavation


o Concrete work (pathways, pads for trash receptacles, etc)


o Site furnishings (bike racks, benches, trash receptacles)


- Researched possible grant funding opportunities and discovered the Reeves Foundation.


o $25,000 grant


o Application opens 2/5/19, closes 3/19/19, and notifications go out on 5/31/19.


- Worked on the RFP for the playground


Whitewater Park


- Sediment Sampling RFP


o Corrected typos based on committee meeting


o Asked experts about sampling downstream of the dam to see if it is needed


o Went over the RFP with the City Attorney. We looked at legalities and if the deliverables


were highlighted. The deliverables are:


 Developing a sampling plan based on WDNR wants


 Conducting the sampling in accordance to WDNR rules and regulations


 Compiling a report that highlights the contaminants, realistic cost estimate to


manage the sediment, and possible grant opportunities.


o Compiled a list of possible contractors using the WDNR’s consultant list.


o RFP has been sent out and I have been fielding questions over the phone from


interested parties.


o Proposals are due


- Read Dane County’s report on flooding. Weed harvesting and sediment removal were identified


to get water moving through the system faster.


Mandt Park Master Plan


- Updated the RFP based on committee’s recommendation.


- Went over the RFP with the City Attorney and made corrections using their advice.


- Compiled a list of firms specializing in landscape architecture by using the American Society of


Landscape Architecture database.


- Sent out the RFP to the list.


- Have started scheduling pre-submittal meetings with interested parties.


- Proposals are due


Park Design Guidelines


- Made substantial progress with the park design guidelines.


o Completed three chapters out of eleven. Some remaining include specifications for


sport fields, crime prevention through environmental design (park visibility and access),


and site amenities.


- Met with Public Works to go over progress and gather their input.







Director’s Report
February 2019


Format Example – Provides what the guideline is, the rationale behind it, and when it is reviewed during


the planning process.


Section 5: Grading & Drainage


5-1 General Turf Areas
Avoid creating ponding or soggy areas in turf grass. A 2% grade generally allows for adequate drainage.


Grades less than 2% should be limited to sports fields or small areas within passive use spaces. Where


concentrated drainage has the potential to flow across turf areas that have less than a 2% grade, the


design should consider subsurface drainage or a paved valley gutter.


Rationale: Water ponding in turf creates areas that are difficult to mow and maintain the expected turf


quality. Adequate grading for drainage allows for more time that the space is useable.


Review: SD, DD, 95% CD


Review concept grading at schematic design phase. Review specific grading solutions at design


development and 95% construction document phases.


Miscellaneous


- Met with Stoughton High School Athletic Director to go over facility reservation and equipment


needs.


- Wrote a letter of support for a trail connecting River Bluff School to the Yahara River Trail. A


physical education teacher contacted me in the fall about having a trail. The site has limitations


due to topography.


- Took two days of vacation.


- Kourtni took five days of vacation and I dealt with day to day activities such as weather


cancellations when she was gone. When she is gone, I don’t have much time to spend on other


things.


Rotary Park Improvements


- The lead-time on the precast restrooms is 90 days. The restroom is on schedule to be completed


by June if it gains proper approvals in February and goes out for bid in March.


- Completed site plan and memo for Planning Commission.


- Location for the building was approved at the 2/11 Planning Commission Meeting


- Worked with a firm to get a cost estimate for engineering and surveying work to connect the


park from Main St and have a path from the fire station side of the park down to the proposed


restrooms.


- Put together a budget for the restroom project which included excavation for path to the


restroom, excavation for the restroom, excavation for utility hookups, plumbing and electrical


cost, and any restoration.


- I will be going to the Rotary Club meeting on 2/20 to go over the restroom project and future


upgrades to the park.







Director’s Report
February 2019


Criddle Park Playground


- Went over the RFP with the City Attorney and made changes based on his advice.


- Completed the RFP along with the exhibits showing the map of the park and public input results.


- Worked with the City Clerk to have the public notice put in the Hub.


- Contacted the Marshall Parks and Recreation Director to get a plan holder’s list for when they


build their natural playground.


Youth Baseball and Softball Contracts


- Met with Public Works about the contracts for the youth baseball and softball organizations.





